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Catholic Health Australia is the largest non-government provider grouping of health, community
and aged care services in Australia, nationally representing Catholic health care sponsors, systems,
facilities and related organisations and services.
80 hospitals and more than 25,000 aged care beds are operated by different bodies of the Catholic
Church within Australia. Approximately 40,000 home care and support consumers are also
supported. These health and aged care services are operated in fulfilment of the mission of the
Church to provide care and healing to all those who seek it. Catholic Health Australia is the peak
member organisation of these health and aged care services.
Further detail on Catholic Health Australia can be obtained at www.cha.org.au
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“A Samaritan came near
the man who was beaten, 
and when he saw him, he was 
moved with compassion.”
 
Luke 10:33

”
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Vision 
We are recognised as an effective advocate 
for compassionate health, aged and 
community care in Australia, supporting 
our members to continue the healing 
mission of Jesus. 

Mission 
CHA supports our Catholic health, aged and community 
care members through policy leadership and sector 
engagement, enhancing their missions to provide 
compassionate care to all Australians.
We are inspired by the ministry of Jesus and the work 
of Catholic congregations to bring healing, justice, 
comfort and hope for all, especially the vulnerable, 
disadvantaged, neglected and stigmatised in society.

VISION, MISSION AND VALUES
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Values
CHA and member organisations share common values 
grounded in the mission of the Gospel - for the good 
of all. CHA and members, as ministries of the Catholic 
Church, are inspired by the person and mission of Jesus, 
who embraced the world to bring justice and healing.

 
CHA and member organisations are committed to 
showing love and respect for service users and staff, 
providing the best care especially for the vulnerable and 
marginalised and to approach every encounter as an 
opportunity for healing, companionship, compassion, 
comfort, and hope.
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Our wide coverage of Australia where we operate 80 
hospitals – including 17 public hospitals and 18 hospitals 
located in rural or regional locations – meant we were 
well placed to contribute to the government’s response 
to the COVID-19 pandemic. Earlier this year following a 
review of its capacity, and learning from the experiences 
of other health systems in Europe and North America, 
the newly formed National Cabinet came to realise 
our federated public health system might not be well 
placed to cope with any surge in COVID-19 infections 
here in Australia. Once non-urgent elective surgery was 
suspended our members found themselves in a position 
to assist with that response. As you would expect, 
Catholic hospitals were happy to stand alongside our 
colleagues in the for profit and public sectors to deal 
with the rising number of cases. The cooperation and 
coordination that occurred within the Commonwealth 
and between both the public and private health systems 
in the first half of 2020 proved to be a seminal moment 
in the development of our country’s health infrastructure 
and bodes well for the future.
I am pleased to advise the Board has finalised CHA’s 
strategic plan for 2020–2025. Over the next five years, 
CHA will focus on three key activities – influential 
advocacy, sector engagement and the development 
of CHA capability. Our vision is to be recognised as an 
effective advocate for compassionate health, aged and 
community care in Australia, supporting our members to 
continue the healing mission of Jesus.
We continue to engage with Canberra to ensure your 
concerns are raised and listened to. At the request of the 
government, we produced a landmark report examining 
the potential opportunity for more care to be delivered 
out of the hospital environment. Greater take-up of out  
of hospital care has the potential to ease pressure on  
the health system and provide patients with better,  
and more flexible, care. Compared to traditional  
in-patient care for medically stable patients, OOH care 
can often be more efficient and effective, with lower 
readmission rates, shorter length of stay, and increased 
patient satisfaction.

Progressing that depends on the funding mechanisms 
of the private health insurers. CHA continued to promote 
the value of private health insurance but in its advocacy 
called on more reform to the sector, including changes 
to current legislation to encourage young people to 
retain their coverage. 
One of the few positive things to come out of this year 
was the widespread adoption of telehealth by the public 
and by our hospitals. It was amazing to see how many 
extra appointments were able to be accommodated 
by technology, whether it was via the phone or via 
teleconferencing, and how readily the public responded. 
It demonstrated the vital role that telehealth will play  
into the future and it formed part of our advocacy to 
lobby government for it to remain on the Medicare 
Benefits Schedule. 
It has been a torrid year for aged care operators, but 
particularly so for those in Victoria. There are now more 
than 25,000 residential aged care beds and more than 
7,000 independent living units in the Catholic sector. Our 
members worked tirelessly to put in place the measures 
needed to protect their residents during the pandemic. 
COVID aside, CHA participated in the Royal Commission 
hearings and workshops to make sure our sector’s 
viewpoint was heard. We also took an industry lead and 
used the recent Eden Monaro by election to trial a public 
awareness campaign to put aged care and how we treat 
our elderly on the political agenda. It’s long overdue and 
it is heartening that the entire aged care sector is now 
embarking on a similar exercise in the lead up to the next 
general election. 
Our work in mission remains central to what CHA does. 
We continue to educate those working in the sector on 
the vexed issues around voluntary assisted dying and 
on how to interpret the code of ethics that underpin 
what we do. This year saw CHA hand over the reins 
of the successful Ministry Leadership Program to the 
Australian Catholic University. One hundred and twenty 
participants passed through the program since CHA 
introduced it to Australia a few years ago. It will now 
begin a new chapter under the stewardship of the ACU 
and we will continue to promote and support what is a 
key formation program for future and current leaders in 
our sectors. 

It has been a year of great challenges to the health and aged 
care sectors, among them our members who continue to deliver 
excellence in service with compassion to all Australians.
Catholic Health Australia remains Australia’s largest non-government 
grouping of health, community and aged care services and provides 
around 25 percent of private hospital care, 5 percent of public 
hospital care, 12 percent of aged care facilities, and 20 percent of 
home care and support for the elderly.

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
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That commitment to support our health, aged and 
community care members through policy leadership 
and sector engagement, enhancing their missions to 
provide compassionate care to all Australians is one of 
the central planks of our new strategic plan. It informs 
our vision to be an effective advocate for compassionate 
health, aged and community care in Australia, and our 
shared values which are, of course, grounded in the 
mission of Gospel. We advocate for, and lead on, policies 
and programs that support CHA members and the 
healing ministry across health, aged and community 
care. And, we will strengthen our collaborative 
engagement with CHA members, government, Catholic 
organisations, other key stakeholders and the wider 
community to support CHA advocacy. 
There are three Board Directors whose time on the CHA 
Board came to a close during this year, and to whom I 
wish to convey the deep appreciation of the members, 
Board and CHA staff. These are Paul Robertson as 
Chair, and David Robinson and Don Neander. Paul 
McClintock AO, Francis Sullivan AO, Virginia Bourke and 
James Birch all joined the board as directors. Jenny 
Parker was elected Deputy Chair. I would also like to 
thank Bishop Bill Wright and Sister Maureen Gleeson as 
the representatives of the Australian Catholic Bishops 
Conference and Catholic Religious Australia respectively. 
I wish to convey my thanks to our directors for their hard 
work and deep commitment to CHA.
We also welcomed new staff members to the CHA 
Secretariat including Pat Garcia as CEO, Julian Lee as 
Communications Director, James Kemp as Health Policy 
Director and Paul Linden as Senior Aged Care Policy 
Advisor. We farewelled long serving Mission Director 
Susan Sullivan who has joined the Australian Catholic 
University and will continue to guide Ministry Leadership 
Program participants through their formation. We thank 
for her leadership and hard work at CHA and wish her 
well at ACU.
It has been a positive year of transition for the 
organisation. Our footprint now spans beyond Canberra 
to include Sydney. Our Strategic Plan focuses our 
resources on those activities that best support our sector 
and members. Our new staff bring a new energy 

and fresh perspective that many of you have already 
commented to me on. This year’s bushfires, droughts, 
floods, pandemic and deteriorating economic and fiscal 
climates mean the public need our ministry of healing 
more than ever. I am confident that CHA is well placed 
to support our members deliver the compassionate care 
that has always been at the heart of our mission, and will 
be in the years to come.

The Hon John Watkins AM 
Chairman 
Catholic Health Australia

“Our vision is to be recognised as an effective advocate for 
compassionate health, aged and community care in Australia, 
supporting our members to continue the healing mission of Jesus.”
 
The Hon John Watkins AM 
Chairman
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Since the scourge of COVID swept across the world, the 
Holy Father has spoken frequently and movingly of hope.
Here in Australia, I am grateful to report that hope is 
being rekindled among my fellow citizens perhaps faster 
than elsewhere.
Certainly, in the early days of the crisis the portents 
were dire. We were already battered by a southern 
hemisphere summer of drought and bushfires of 
unprecedented ferocity. And at first we responded 
with brittleness to the threat. Hoarding became 
commonplace with little thought for the vulnerable, 
scuffles broke out in supermarket aisles, and many of our 
politicians indulged in a period of denial.
We struggled to process how we were meant to look 
after each other. How being respectful could mean 
not shaking hands. How love meant separation – from 
grandparents, family, and friends. But Australia is a nation 
blessed with strong social capital, built in no small part 
upon the values of faith.
There are few nations who enjoy irreverently mocking 
their leaders more than Australians, yet when crisis 
arrives we are generally ready to comply. Thus, when our 
leading medical officers and governments told us this 
was a public health crisis there were few who demurred. 
Polling showed Australians always saw COVID as a public 
health crisis first, and an economic crisis second.
Our politicians set aside traditional rivalries and started 
collaborating. A new emergency ‘national cabinet’ was 
formed from state leaders representing opposing parties 
of government and a legacy of COVID is that it remains in 
place today.
Our Catholic hospitals were required to cease elective 
surgery and pour resources into preparing for the 
pandemic. We were able to work cooperatively with 
government to secure a viability guarantee to prevent 
financial disaster. Our aged care sector enforced visitation 
rules and worked overtime to ensure the elders in their 
care felt safe and secure despite the change.

The nation largely stayed home, and was supported 
by government to do that. And while we endured the 
restraints of lockdown we collectively encountered a 
range of unexpected blessings.
The irony of social isolation for many of us is that it 
brought us closer together. By slowing down, many 
of us found more time for those closest to us. We also 
discovered a newfound appreciation for those from 
whom we were separated. 
Working parents were home for dinner. Parents saw 
what schoolwork their children were doing. Couples ate 
humble lunches in their kitchens together. Starved of 
options, neighbours started communicating more. The 
parks were filled with fathers playing soccer with their 
children.
I know the impact on the Church has surprised many 
as well. The public celebration of mass was suspended 
nationwide. But in many cases this helped us reach more 
people.
In Tasmania, the Archdiocese of Hobart put the Good 
Friday liturgy on YouTube where it was watched by more 
than 80,000 people - many times greater than would 
normally have attended the Good Friday liturgy.
The heightened spiritual awareness has been recognised 
not just online. Channel Seven, beamed Easter mass into 
homes this year for the first time in a generation. Holy 
Saturday Paschal Vigil was live streamed from St Mary’s 
Cathedral and thousands of people viewed it live or over 
the Easter Octave.
I have spoken with parish priests who report forming 
greater bonds with their parishioners. One priest has 
made it a habit to phone six parishioners each day. These 
are people he would typically farewell simply at the end 
of mass. Now he finds himself having deep and personal 
conversations and forming real relationships. The 
parishioners were stunned to be getting personal calls 
from their priest, and the priest was surprised at how 
willing parishioners are to open up about their lives over 
the phone. Catholic schools have been able to live their 
values by providing fee relief and ensuring students are 
catered for by technology. In our hospital network ethical 

“This is a different type of “contagion.” It’s a message transmitted from 
heart to heart – for every human heart awaits this Good News. It is the 
contagion of hope, “Christ, my hope, is risen!” 
 
Pope Francis 
Urbi et Orbi – April 12, 2020

FROM OUR CEO
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training designed to plan for the most catastrophic 
demands on our system has sparked an interest in ethics 
more broadly. To meet shortages of pastoral care staff 
and chaplains because of restricted entry to hospitals 
and aged care facilities, many nurses and doctors 
volunteered for training in basic spiritual ‘first aid’  
and filled the gap.
Of course, not everything has been so rosy.
Our friends in the charity sector have reported dreadful 
hardship. COVID has struck vulnerable populations 
hard, including people experiencing homelessness, and 
people on temporary visas.
For the St Vincent de Paul Society it’s meant suspending 
all in-home face to face pastoral visitation, although 
thankfully this is now starting to lift. The volunteer 
workforce has been hit hard with many dropping 
out. And there has been a pronounced increase in the 
demand for services, including many clients who have 
never been in such need before.
We expect the hardship to continue, and perhaps get 
worse. The economic impact of the pandemic has been 
considerably cushioned by the government’s stimulus 
measures, which have provided a wage subsidy for 
employees nationwide. When the subsidy ends, as it 
will, we expect to see a dramatic increase in demand for 
charity services.
Closer to home, I know many frontline workers in health 
and aged care are exhausted mentally and physically. 
They will soon need a rest. I am reminded of the words of 
the Holy Father: “May Jesus, our Passover, grant strength 
and hope to doctors and nurses, who everywhere offer a 
witness of care and love for our neighbours, to the point 
of exhaustion and not infrequently at the expense of their 
own health. Our gratitude and affection go to them, to 
all who work diligently to guarantee the essential services 
necessary for civil society, and to the law enforcement 
and military personnel who in many countries have 
helped ease people’s difficulties and sufferings.”

The challenge from here will be reflecting honestly and 
soberly on what has occurred. Preserving the good 
and working hard to improve the bad. Innovations 
like telehealth should be built upon. The political 
cooperation we were able to achieve should be 
preserved. The reordering of many of our personal 
priorities should give us pause.
I was taught by my faith that God does not make us 
strong, charitable, or resilient; but that He provides us 
with many opportunities to be all these things. He 
certainly is in this moment.

Pat Garcia  
Chief Executive Officer 
Catholic Health Australia

“The nation largely stayed home, and was supported by government 
to do that. And while we endured the restraints of lockdown we 
collectively encountered a range of unexpected blessings.” 
 
Pat Garcia  
CEO, Catholic Health Australia
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80 
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IN FOCUS  
THE CATHOLIC HEALTH AND AGED CARE SECTOR

25,000+
Home support  
consumers

28,000+
Home care  

package consumers

7,000+
independent living units

25,000+
Residential aged care  

beds in the Catholic sector

7,500+
private hospital beds

2,700+
public hospital beds

12,000
of Australia’s hospital beds

83,000+
Employees in the  

Catholic Health & Aged Care sector
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Exploring new models for  
private health insurance
As more Australians move away from private health 
funds CHA is leading the way in developing policy that 
will stem the tide and protect our system of universal 
health care in Australia. We have commissioned a major 
report to examine options to improve the financial 
sustainability of the sector while ensuring the poor, 
vulnerable and marginalised in our community are 
able to continue to access healthcare, such as mental 
health services. The report will examine the current value 
proposition for private health insurance, consider the 
best incentives to attract and retain Australians in private 
health funds and look at opportunities to improve the 
efficiency of contracting between private hospitals and 
health funds to ensure more of the health dollar is spent 
on patients. 

Working as one hospital sector  
during the pandemic
CHA played an important role in the Australian health 
sector’s response to COVID. As the pandemic struck and 
all but the most urgent elective surgery ceased in late 
March CHA sat down with the government to talk about 
ways in which our sector could assist amid some dire 
predictions about a lack of capacity for intensive care 
beds and unprecedented demand for ventilators.
In conjunction with the private for-profit hospital sector 
CHA negotiated with Commonwealth, State and Territory 
Governments an historic viability guarantee that saw the 
full integration of the Catholic sector’s hospitals with the 
public system. Working under the direction of state and 
territory government health departments our facilities 
and staff were put at their disposal to fight COVID. That 
partnership has served well over the second phase of the 
pandemic in Victoria and will continue to be in place and 
ready to be re-activated at a moment’s notice so long as 
the threat of COVID remains.

Better services for patients 
In keeping with our mission for affordable and accessible 
healthcare CHA is pushing for reforms to the health 
sector that delivers on this. CHA has authored a report 
into the opportunity of out of hospital (OOH) care.  
The report, entitled Advancing Health’s Missing Sector, 
focuses on the barriers and solutions to enable OOH 
care to grow across the private system. It also identifies 
the funding mechanisms required to expand OOH care 
and how to ensure non-hospital providers meet similar 
standards as hospitals. Our team has already held talks 
with government, private hospital groups and the  
health funds. 

Advocating for telehealth
CHA has also been advocating for an extension of the 
temporary Medicare items for telehealth services. We 
have been focusing our efforts on communicating 
the benefits of telehealth for the poor, vulnerable 
and marginalised, such as those in regional and rural 
areas who have limited access to specialist health 
care, and those accessing mental health services. 
CHA will continue to use the media to put pressure 
on government and the private health funds to make 
telehealth a permanent fixture of our health landscape. 

A YEAR IN REVIEW

HEALTH
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The Aged Care Royal Commission
CHA has used the Royal Commission process as 
an opportunity to push for the reforms that are so 
desperately needed to deliver a better aged care system. 
We have actively engaged with the Commission in 
the past 12 months, appearing as a witness, making 
a submission on the redesign of the aged care 
program and participating in invited workshops and 
teleconferences with the Commission. Throughout the 
year we have kept members informed by circulating 
summaries of hearings and giving regular updates  
in our newsletter. 

Advocating for a better aged care
CHA has contributed to the work of the Minister’s 
Aged Care sector Committee and that of the Aged 
Care Financing Authority. We prepared a pre-Budget 
submission for the 2020-21 Budget which prioritised the 
need to address residential aged care funding pressures 
pending the introduction of a new funding system by 
addressing the inadequate indexation arrangements 
that currently apply. We also prioritised the continued 
expansion of home care packages in order to reduce 
the current waiting list. In all, our team made six major 
submissions to government and the Department 
of Health on a wide variety of important issues. Our 
quarterly Canberra Aged Care Round-up newsletters 
kept members up to date on developments concerning 
the funding and regulation of aged care.

Fighting for Better Aged Care campaign
CHA used the by-election campaign in Eden Monaro, 
NSW to trial an aged care awareness campaign. We want 
to make aged care a priority for the community and 
for our citizens to put pressure on our politicians to take 
the issue seriously. In a three-week campaign period, 
we advertised in newspapers, radio and Facebook and 
handed out hundreds of leaflets at polling booths. 
Among those who saw the Fight for Better Aged Care 
campaign, there was strong support for change. For 
example, the percentage of people who agreed with the 
statement that fixing the aged care system should be a 
key government priority rose from 40 percent before the 
campaign to 60 percent. CHA’s initiative has spurred the 
wider industry into action and a similar nationwide push 
by all aged care industry bodies is now underway.

Shaping sector response to Covid-19 
CHA has played a key role in influencing the sector’s 
response to the COVID pandemic. Regular updates with 
the Department of Health and with Minister Colbeck, as 
well as the aged care and consumer peak bodies, has 
ensured we are both informed of government’s position 
and inform it. Initiatives to flow from such conversations 
included additional funding to meet provider costs 
in managing the spread of COVID and to manage 
outbreaks; negotiating the administrative arrangements 
for the claiming of additional funding; developing a visitor 
access code; access to PPE; greater flexibility in the use 
of CHSP funding; surge workforce and testing capability; 
and protocols for the transfer of COVID positive residents 
to COVID wards in public hospitals. CHA has circulated 
some 40 updates on COVID-19 developments to 
members.
End of Life Directions funding partnership
CHA signed a three-year collaboration contract with the 
Queensland University of Technology, Flinders University 
and the University of Technology to improve the quality 
of end of life care for older people, including improving 
linkages between aged care services and palliative care 
services, improving skills and advance care planning 
expertise and developing and applying assistive tools 
and technology. End of Life Directions and Care is now 
an integral part of CHA’s advocacy and policy formation.

AGED CARE
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Vad Tier 2 Training
Mission Services coordinates and presents training for 
staff who are designated as tier 2 in the governance 
protocols which apply in our services for responding 
to requests for Voluntary Assisted Dying (Suicide) in 
Victorian hospitals and residential facilities. Thirty-five 
staff participated in the February session. Tier 2 training 
took place in September 2020. Modules are being 
developed for WA as the regulations for VAD legislation 
become available.

Decoding the code 
Decoding the Code continues to play an important 
role in informing those working in the Catholic health 
and aged care sectors of the need to understand the 
ethics that underpin what we do. Demand for the 
course is growing and we now offer two cohorts each 
year; the average enrolment in each cohort is 40. The 
online training program is conducted in ten sessions 
over a four month period which introduces staff in 
CHA organisations to the Code of Ethical Standards for 
Catholic Health and Aged Care (Australia). A wide cross 
section of roles are represented among the participants 
including; group and facility level CEO’s, Directors of 
Nursing, medical staff, managers, senior executives and 
pastoral care practitioners. The course is a collaboration 
between BBI – The Australian Institute of Theological 
Education and CHA Mission Services.

Ethics matters
As part of the thought leadership in ethics CHA 
Secretariat is developing a new element for the CHA 
website called Ethics Matters. We have invited ethicists 
from among our member organisations and academics 
from universities in Australia, UK and USA to contribute 
articles on current and emerging issues in ethics within 
the health and aged care context. We are reaching out 
to a new Asian Catholic Ethics Network for possible 
contributors. The first of these papers outlined the 
positive contribution Catholic ethical principles have 
to contribute to responses to a pandemic. Two other 
contributions are in preparation dealing with aspects of 
ethics of vaccine development and vaccination.

MISSION

A YEAR IN REVIEW



Media coverage
CHA has been raising public awareness of issues that are 
important to you in the media as part of our advocacy 
aims. Since October we have issued more than 50 
CHA press releases to the media on a wide variety of 
subjects for our members in health and aged care. These 
include but are not limited to the following: pushing for 
a fairer funding deal for Catholic hospitals to put their 
staff and facilities at the government’s disposal during 
the pandemic; pressing the Commonwealth for more 
funding to help our aged care operators deal with COVID; 
calling on the government to examine means testing to 
fund aged care; and, pressing for reform of private health 
funds to attract and retain young people in the system. 
In the year to date CHA has been mentioned more than 
400 times, a significant increase on the previous year. 
We managed to secure coverage on Channel Nine, in 
The Sydney Morning Herald and The Age, The Australian 
Financial Review and in The Australian, as well as in 
leading industry websites. CHA will continue to speak 
out in the media on issues that are important to you and 
promote our Catholic mission.

Events
More events are planned after a successful webinar 
hosted jointly by CHA and the Commonwealth 
Department of Health in July. One hundred people 
listened to the discussion - hosted by Deputy Chief 
Medical Officer Dr Nick Coatsworth - on how the hospital 
system is coping with COVID. He was joined by a panel 
of three representatives from the Catholic hospital sector: 
Rachel Resuggan, Group Manager Allied Health, St John 
of God Health Care; Tanya Brooks, General Manager 
Calvary Adelaide Hospital; and Anthony Schembri, 
CEO St Vincent’s Hospital Sydney. It showed us that 
our members appreciated the opportunity to share 
experiences and learn from each other following the 
events of the past few months. 
A similar webinar was held in October discussing the 
merits of telehealth and was also attended by more than 
100 people. Chief Medical Officer at St Vincent’s Health 
Erwin Loh compered the event which included valuable 
contributions from Shannon Thompson, Director of 
Clinical Services at Calvary Health Care Bethlehem; 
Rachel Resuggan, Group Manager Allied Health at St. 
John of God Health Care; Dr. Chris Robinson - Director, 
Innovation and Improvement at St. Vincent's Health 
Network Sydney; and Kirby Young, Chief of Allied Health 
and Ambulatory Services at Cabrini Health. More events 
are planned for the coming 12 months.

15

MEDIA, MARKETING  
& PUBLIC RELATIONS
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At Villa Maria Catholic Home’s new specialist dementia care program in 
Melbourne, there’s a new approach to treating the condition. 
Every one of its eight residents at its newly-built Lady Lourdes House 
in Melbourne’s Western Suburbs will be living in a home specifically 
designed for people with severe dementia and staffed by an expert team 
that will provide a highly personalised approach.

Their focus will be on employing strategies to re-
engage with the resident by providing a home-like 
environment with more freedom and activities tailored 
to the individual. Coupled with a clinical team assessing 
medication levels, it’s hoped the residents’ symptoms 
will stabilise within one year, enabling them to return to 
mainstream care.
The unit – housed within VMCH’s St Bernadette’s Aged 
Care Residence in Sunshine North - is one of nine across 
the country funded by the Australian Government 
Department of Health’s Specialist Dementia Care 
Program (SDCP) and it’s hoped within a few years there 
will be one in every primary health network.
VMCH CEO Sonya Smart says: “The future of exceptional 
aged care relies on providing services that are tailored to 
the individual. We believe this is a great opportunity to 
provide specialised care for those with dementia, where 
we can provide care and support, and empower our 
residents to live happy, fulfilled lives despite their disease.
“Lady Lourdes House will provide our residents with 
12 months of intensive, supportive care, to help them 
manage their symptoms, so that they can then transition 
into a mainstream aged care residence of their choice.”
The home has been refurbished and architecturally 
designed with guidance from Professor Richard Fleming 
and the Dementia Enabling Environmental Principles 
which recognise that people with severe dementia can 
exhibit behaviours such as aggression, hallucinations 
and wandering. Lady Lourdes House has been designed 
to provide a home-like environment, including an open 
plan layout with automatic doors so residents can 
wander freely inside and to a secure garden whenever 
they want.
Residents will be able to engage in the hobbies and 
activities of their choice – such as jewellery making or 
painting. They will also be encouraged to take part in 
household tasks like cooking and cleaning, and can 
help themselves to food whenever they want. It will all 
be done under the watchful eye of a more intensive, 
specially trained team. 

Elizabeth Baxter, VMCH’s Dementia Services Specialist 
says many people with severe dementia are often not 
supported properly. “They are often highly medicated 
to the point of sedation in some homes. But these 
medications come with a range of side effects that can 
cause behavioural issues like aggression. 
“A big focus here will be on managing the medication 
side of their treatment and reducing it in a very  
managed way.”
“We do really hope and expect that after a year of living 
at this unit they will be able to return to a mainstream 
dementia setting, but we will always have one bed open 
in case they do need to return.”
Lady Lourdes House is assisted by Dementia Support 
Australia and the North West Mental Health Service to 
ensure all support is specific to the needs of people living 
with dementia.
Elizabeth says it’s enlightening to see people with  
severe dementia being treated with respect and dignity 
but says there is a lot of stigma in society that needs to 
be overcome.
“We have an ageing population in Australia and 
dementia is likely to touch us all. We could be more 
patient of those with dementia in the community – but 
right now they are hidden away and out of sight.” 
“We need education and awareness to take away the 
shame associated with dementia and for dementia to be 
normalised and not something we are fearful of.”
More information on the program can be found at 
https://www.health.gov.au/initiatives-and-programs/
specialist-dementia-care-program-sdcp or through 
health care providers in the North Western Melbourne 
Primary Health Network.

INNOVATION SPOTLIGHT  
VILLA MARIA’S APPROACH TO CARING  
FOR THOSE LIVING WITH DEMENTIA
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“We have an ageing population in Australia and dementia is likely to 
touch us all. We could be more patient of those with dementia in the 
community – but right now they are hidden away and out of sight.”
 
Elizabeth Baxter 
VMCH’s Dementia Services Specialist
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There is nothing new in helping others but what is 
new is that for the first time we are quantifying the 
scale of our sector’s social outreach, and setting a 
benchmark for the Catholic sector, one that I hope 
we can improve on every year.
It is part of a rich tradition that for many of us 
stretches back more than a century when religious 
orders were the first and only providers of healthcare 
in the new colony, ministering to the sick, the poor 
and marginalised.
Technology has improved in leaps and bounds, as 
have facilities and the wonders of modern medicine 
but the core of what we do remains the same.
Today collectively our members deliver almost $70 
million in services back to the community through 
more than 100 social outreach programs both here 
in Australia and in the region. Every day to further 
their mission Catholic hospitals are providing on 
average material, staffing and facilities to the value  
of $181,000.
They range from the training of health volunteers 
in Papua New Guinea to providing free healthcare 
to those seeking asylum in our cities. Each year it is 
estimated that our services touch the lives of more 
than 150,000 people or 430 a day.
All of this is made possible because we continue  
to operate on a not for profit basis, using our 
operational revenues to fund projects that would  
not otherwise exist.
Above all we do it because it is a continuation of 
the ministry of healing that is at the heart of the 
organisations that are our members and the  
mission of the Catholic Church.
I am proud of our collective achievements  
as I am sure you will be too.

The Hon John Watkins AM 
Chairman 
Catholic Health Australia

COMPASSION IN ACTION

103
UNIQUE SOCIAL
OUTREACH PROGRAMS

156,000+
CASES OF SUPPORT
TO THOSE IN NEED

$66,280,000
OF COMMUNITY PROGRAM
SERVICES DELIVERED

Welcome to the inaugural Compassion in Action report where we 
record and celebrate the cumulative efforts of our hospital members 
in giving back to their communities. We want to document the 
additional contribution they make to Australians, beyond the core 
work of providing care in hospitals.
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Cabrini Asylum Seeker and  
Refugee Health Services
Cabrini provides free primary care, specialist mental 
health care and pharmacy waiver programs to people 
seeking asylum living in Melbourne’s northern and 
western suburbs. It prioritises access for people who 
do not have Medicare and/or income, those who are 
vulnerable due to previous experiences of torture and 
trauma and people experiencing prolonged uncertainty 
due to their migration status. Six out of ten Cabrini clients 
do not have access to Medicare. Last year the service 
saw an average of 374 clients a month, its mental health 
clinicians delivered more than 2686 hours of service, 
including 2407 direct consultations, its primary health 
nurses delivered 3486 hours, and 830 prescription fees 
were waived. 

Calvary Health Care Tasmania’s Community Coun-
cil Grants program 
Calvary Tasmania offers five $5,000 grants each year to 
not-for-profit Tasmanian organisations to address specific 
unmet, under-resourced or under-serviced health needs 
of young adults, adolescents and older people. This 
year grants were awarded to Lady Gowrie Tasmania 
for parent workshops; The Variety Children’s Charity 
for a creative arts program to help children manage 
trauma, neglect and abuse; Dorset Community House 
for a community garden, Rclind Australia for sports 
packages for Tasmania’s 35 neighbourhood houses and 
Special Olympics Australia to provide more inclusive 
opportunities to participate in sport.
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Mater Kiunga Village Health Program 
Mater’s private hospital in Townsville has operated 
a program in Papua New Guinea’s largest province, 
North Fly, to train local people as volunteers to promote 
healthier lifestyles and to administer first aid. Birth 
attendants are trained to support women through 
pregnancy and childbirth by identifying potential 
problems and getting them to the health centre before 
they give birth. Most recently the program distributed 
cocoa seedlings to the volunteers so that they could 
grow and sell the crop locally, thereby keeping them in 
the area so that they could carry on their important work.  
 
 
 

 
 

Mercy Health Breastmilk Bank Satellite Sites
For almost a decade Mercy Health has been helping 
vulnerable, premature and/or sick babies in Victoria by 
collecting, processing and storing human milk donated 
by healthy breastfeeding mothers producing milk in 
excess of their baby’s needs. It began at the Mercy 
Hospital for Women and is now moving to other  
satellite distribution centres, including at the Royal 
Children’s Hospital and the Royal Women’s Hospital.  
Last year they received 399 litres of donated breastmilk 
from donors; helped get 193 litres of pasteurised donor 
milk to 105 babies. 

COMPASSION IN ACTION
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St John of God Horizon House
St John of God Horizon House provides medium-term 
accommodation, care and support to young people 
aged 16 to 22 who are currently experiencing or are 
at serious risk of, homelessness, across 13 locations 
in Western Australia and Victoria. Horizon House 
supports young people to set goals to work towards 
independence and community connection - which 
may include accessing education, training or vocational 
opportunities, rebuilding family connections and learning 
essential life skills. Last year it provided 36,594 nights 
of accommodation to 167 young people, including 25 
young mums who were supported with vital parenting 
skills through the Young Mother and Baby Program. 

St Vincent’s and COVID relief for homeless 
For 126 years, St Vincent’s Hospital Melbourne has cared 
for the poorest and most vulnerable in the community. 
Inspired by its mission and values St Vincent’s is proud to 
play a leading role providing clinical care to four pop-up 
COVID-19 isolation and recovery facilities for homeless 
people. Operated by various community organisations, 
they are part of the Victorian Government’s COVID-19 
support for those experiencing or at risk of homelessness. 
Even through the tragedy of this pandemic,  
St Vincent’s has been able to give recipients a new 
start to life through collaborative, transformative and 
compassionate care.

“For I was hungry and you gave me something to eat, I was thirsty 
and you gave me something to drink, I was a stranger and you 
invited me in, I needed clothes and you clothed me, I was sick and 
you looked after me, I was in prison and you came to visit me.’
Then the righteous will answer him, ‘Lord, when did we see you 
hungry and feed you, or thirsty and give you something to drink?’
 
Matt 25:35-40
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Mission Services successfully concluded Cohort 2 of 
the Ministry Leadership Program. Thirty-six senior 
executives from health, aged care and community 
services completed the program. Evaluations were highly 
positive. Members of this cohort continue to network 
and collaborate on a number of projects including staff 
exchanges between CHA member hospitals. Cohort 3 
commenced July 2019 and completed four sessions with 
CHA. Thirty-nine senior executives from health, aged 
care and social services are enrolled in the program. This 
cohort benefited from improvements to the design and 
delivery of MLP. 
After four years of running the MLP and seeing 120 
people successfully pass through the program, it 
transferred to the Australian Catholic University (ACU) 
in July 2020. COVID 19 delayed the next session which 
was to occur in February: Cohort 3 recommenced in 
July 2020 and Cohort 4 will commence February 2021. 
We maintain strong links with the ACU and have every 
confidence that the program will continue to go from 
strength to strength.
Mission Services is currently engaging members in 
conversations concerning strategic directions for mission 
and the ongoing leadership and coordination role 
Mission Services can have within the CHA member 
organisation. There are a number of significant issues 
emerging in ethics and mission and identity as a result of 
proposed changes in legislation concerning a variety of 
practices and procedures in health in which CHA Mission 
services can continue to listen to the voice of members 
and formulate a common response to the challenges. 
Implications of pastoral and spiritual care standards 
for accreditation pose challenges for recruitment, 
ongoing training and the role of pastoral care and 
these are conversations which CHA will coordinate with 
members. Other issues are emerging and which require 
a coordinated sector response. Mission Services has 
become a focus for the coordination of these  
important conversations and engagement with the 
wider Church and government sector on questions  
of mission and identity

Pastoral care
COVID 19 presented some challenges for pastoral care 
of the sick and elderly. Drawing on the Catholic ethic 
of care it allowed our members to find creative ways 
to respond to needs and to prioritise the pastoral and 
spiritual care of residents and patients. CHA members 
focussed on ways to keep people connected and to 
make sure that each person who was dying could 
choose someone from their family to be with them at 
that time, so that no one died alone. This could only be 
done with the assistance of clinicians experienced in 
PPE and infection control and pastoral care practitioners. 
We learned a lot about how our members responded 
to these challenges through participation in the 
Catholic University of Leuven (KUL) study of pastoral care 
responses as part of an international study. The Dicastery 
for Human Development in Rome also received from 
Mission Services an extract of the Australian data from 
this study.

Governance
Mission Services commenced a pilot study of mission 
and identity formation for board members and senior 
executives. At the invitation of a member organisation 
in the aged care sector we devised a plan to do initial 
formation which will enable the organisation to set 
its own strategic priorities for mission and identity 
formation. It will be up to the organisation to provide 
or source its own mission and identity formation once 
it has a plan in place. The idea for this pilot project was 
suggested at the CHA 2019 Governance Symposium. It 
was suggested that CHA could have a role in assisting 
smaller CHA members which do not have a formation 
team and resources, to at least get to the stage of having 
a clear plan in mind for their needs and to embed 
mission goals in KPI’s for senior leaders and within the 
strategic plan of the organisation.

“Mission is the golden thread that weaves its way through all aspects 
of health and aged care policy, clinical and business decisions in the 
Catholic health and aged care sector. We have come to recognise 
this so keenly during our response to the COVID 19 pandemic and as 
we respond to parliamentary enquiries and legislation on physician 
assisted suicide or Voluntary Assisted Dying.”
 
Assoc Prof Anthony Gooley 
Manager of Mission Services

OUR MISSION REPORT 
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John Watkins AM 
Chair, Catholic Health Australia

John is the Chair of Catholic Health Australia and Catholic Professional Standards Ltd, a member 
of the Advisory Committee for the Centre for Emotional Health at Macquarie University and an 
Adjunct Professor of Law at the University of Western Sydney. John was made a Member of the 
Order of Australia in the Australia Day Honours List in 2015, for significant service to the community 
through leadership positions within health organisations, tertiary education and the Parliament of 
NSW. John worked as a teacher for 16 years until his election to the NSW Parliament in 1995 – 2008. 
He served ten years as a Minister, including the portfolios of Fair Trading, Sport and Recreation, 
Police and Corrective Services, Transport, Finance, State Development, and Education and Training. 
He was Deputy Premier when he retired in 2008. Subsequently, he has served as Chancellor of the 
University of New England in 2013 and 2014. 
 

Jenny Parker 
Deputy Chair, Catholic Health Australia

Jenny is Deputy Chair and member of the audit and risk committee of Catholic Health Australia. 
She has more than 33 years of professional services experience and is currently the Health and Life 
Sciences Leader for Oceania at consultants EY. Jenny has considerable experience working with 
health organisations including the Mater Hospital Group and St Vincent’s Health, and has a proven 
track record in major government reviews within the health sector. Jenny has previously been the 
Chair for Centacare Council, a not-for-profit entity supporting disability and aged care clients. 
As well as being a board member for Catholic Health Australia, Jenny is also Chair of Catholic 
Education for the Brisbane Archdiocese, Deputy Chair for the Archdiocesan Finance Council, 
Deputy Chancellor for Queensland University of Technology, and a board member for Cancer 
Council Australia.
 

 
Julien O’Connell AO 
Non-Executive Director 

Julien has a long and distinguished career in insurance, accounting and risk management. He is the 
Acting Pro-Chancellor, Australian Catholic University (ACU); Chairman of a CEO Institute Syndicate; 
Chairman Mercy Health Foundation Board; Chairman, Villa Maria Catholic Homes; Chairman, PM 
Glynn Institute, ACU and ACU’s Finance and Resource Committee; a member of a number of 
boards and finance councils and supports Enterprise Ireland in Victoria.
In 2018 he retired after serving for a decade as Chairman of Mercy Health and for 23 years he served 
on the Finance Committee of the Catholic Archdiocese of Melbourne. He also chairs Catholic Health 
Australia’s Audit and Risk Committee.
His significant service to the community was recognised with an Order of Australia (AM) in the  
2013 Australia Day honours and an Officer of the Order of Australia (AO) in the 2020 Queen’s 
Birthday honours.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Jim Birch AM 
Non-Executive Director

Jim is currently Chair of Little Company of Mary Health Care, Chair of Lifeblood (formerly the 
Australian Red Cross Blood Service, Chair of the Women’s and Children’s Health Network (South 
Australia) and Chair of Clevertar Pty Ltd. He is also a Director of the Cancer SA Board. 
Prior to this Jim was a Partner at Ernst and Young having previously been the Global Health Care 
Leader, and the Oceania Government and Public Service Leader. During his time at EY Jim has 
delivered or led major consultancies in Australia, Asia and the Middle East.
Jim has been a Chief Executive of a Human Services and Health Department (South Australia) and 
Deputy Chief Executive of Justice. He has been Chair of the Australian Health Minister’s Advisory 
Council, during which he led the establishment of the Australian Commission on Safety and Quality 
in Health Care.
Jim has also been a Chief Executive and Senior Executive of many health services during his  
career and has served as a Director on various health, human services and education Boards  
and committees. 

 
Virginia Bourke 
Non-Executive Director

Virginia is a lawyer and consultant in private practice with a breadth of corporate governance and 
commercial experience. She is a consultant with the national health industry group at MinterEllison 
Lawyers and previously worked as General Counsel for the Institute of Sisters of Mercy of Australia 
and Papua New Guinea and as Special Counsel in the Employment Law group at MinterEllison 
Lawyers.
Virginia is the Chair of Mercy Health, and is also Chair of St John Ambulance Victoria, a Director of St 
John Ambulance Australia, a Director of the Mater Group and a Director of Catholic Health Australia. 
Virginia is a Director of Caritas Australia, a Member of the Boards Appointment Committee with the 
Catholic Archdiocese of Melbourne and an Advisory Board Member for the PM Glynn Institute at 
Australian Catholic University.
 
 

Sr Ruth Durick OSU 
Non-Executive Director

Ruth is a member of the international Institute of the Ursulines of the Roman Union. Currently she 
is the Leader of the Australian Province, having been appointed in February 2020. Ruth is also a 
member of the order’s General Finance commission and Commission on Safeguarding.
Ruth has a background in secondary education, administration, formation and governance; she 
holds a BA (ANU); B. Theol (MCD); Dip Ed; M.A.(Social Ecology) UWS; M. Litt.(Peace Studies) (UNE).
Ruth has been a board director of St. Ursula’s College Toowoomba and been Chair of Members of 
the same organisation. She is a member of Australian Institute of Company Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS CONTINUED

Sr Maureen Gleeson OAM PHD 
Non-Executive Director

Sister Maureen Gleeson is a Sister of Mercy and sits on the CHA Board as a Representative of 
Catholic Religious Australia (CRA).
As well as attaining general, midwifery, and infant welfare nursing qualifications, Maureen has 
Bachelor, Masters and Doctorate qualifications (University of New South) in Health Services 
Administration. 
Sister Maureen has undertaken senior health executive management studies at Cornell University 
in the US. She has also undertaken Scripture studies at Leuven University in Belgium. She has wide 
experience in the operation of health services in both public and private sectors
Appointed by the Minister of Health (NSW) from 2008 – 2018 Maureen served as a Member of a 
Panel for the Medical Tribunal and Professional Standards Committee under the Medical Practice 
Act 1992
In 2008 Maureen was awarded the Medal of the Order of Australia for services to the Australian 
Health Care System.

Paul McClintock AO 
Non-Executive Director

Paul is Chair of St Vincent’s Health Australia, I-Med Radiology and Laser Clinics Australia. His former 
positions include Secretary to Cabinet in the Federal Government, Chair of Medibank Private, 
Symbion Health, Affinity Health, the Woolcock Institute of Medical Research, the COAG Reform 
Council and Sydney Health Partners, National Chair of CEDA and a Commissioner of the Health 
Insurance Commission.
Paul graduated from Sydney University in Arts and Law, is an honorary fellow of the Faculty of 
Medicine of that university, a Life Governor of the Woolcock Institute of Medical Research and an 
Honorary Life Trustee of CEDA. He was made an Officer in the Order of Australia in 2009.
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Hon Kerry Sanderson AC CVO 
Non-Executive Director 

Kerry Sanderson has had a long and distinguished career in public life and corporate Australia. 
Kerry has been the Chair of St John of God Health Care since May 2018. She is currently Chancellor 
of Edith Cowan University, a role she has had since January 2019. Between 2014 and 2018 Kerry 
was Governor of Western Australia, the first woman to occupy that role. In 2016 she was named 
Companion of the Order of Australia 2016 for eminent service to the people of Western Australia 
and in January 2020 she was appointed as a Commander of the Royal Victorian Order by the 
Queen in recognition of her distinguished personal service to the Royal family.
Kerry has also held a number of senior positions on large corporations and public institutions, 
namely Agent General for WA, CEO of Fremantle Ports, Deputy Director General of Transport for 
WA and Director of the Economic and Financial Policy Division of the Western Australian State 
Treasury. She is also a former Chair of the Gold Corporation, former independent Chair of the State 
Emergency Management Committee, and a former Non-Executive Director of Downer EDI and 
Atlas Iron.
She participates in a number of charitable and community activities including Chair of the WA 
Parks Foundation, Patron of the Western Australian Aboriginal Leadership Institute, the Bibbulmun 
Track Foundation and the Rottnest Voluntary Guides Association.

Francis Sullivan AO 
Non-Executive Director 
Francis is the Executive Chair of the Mater Health Group Queensland and a director of Mercy Health 
Australia. He also serves on the Australian Catholic University’s PM Glynn Institute. He was previously 
the CEO of the Truth, Justice and Healing Council.
His earlier appointments were as Secretary General of the Australian Medical Association and the 
inaugural CEO of Catholic Health Australia, a position he held for 14 years.
He is an adjunct professor at ACU and a director of Catholic Social Services Australia. In 2008 the 
ACU awarded him an honorary degree for his work in public health advocacy.
Earlier this year he was awarded the Order of Australia in the Queen’s Birthday Honour’s List for 
distinguished service to the community, particularly through social justice and legislative reform 
initiatives, and to health and aged care.

Bishop Bill Wright DD 
Non-Executive Director 
Bishop William (Bill) Wright was ordained eighth Bishop of the Diocese of Maitland-Newcastle in 
2011. He was ordained to the diaconate in October 1976 and to the priesthood on 20 August 1977 at 
St Mary’s Cathedral.
Since his ordination as bishop, he has served as the Co-Chair of the National Committee for 
Professional Standards. He was a member of the Truth Justice and Healing Council. He has also 
been a member of the Bishops Commission for Church Ministry, for Ecumenism and Inter-Religious 
Relations, and is currently a member of the Commission for Evangelisation Laity and Ministry as well 
as for Social Justice, Mission and Service.
Bill has also served as a parish priest across Western Sydney and country NSW.
In addition, Bill was Vice-Rector of St Patrick’s College, Manly (1985-1991) and Assistant Secretary to 
the Australian Catholic Bishops Conference, in Canberra, in 1995.
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DEPARTING BOARD MEMBERS

In honour of those directors  
who are leaving the Catholic  
Health Australia board we asked  
them to reflect on their time. 

 
 
Paul Robertson AO 
Non-Executive Director  
(retired March 2019) 
 

When Paul Robertson joined the board of Catholic 
Health Australia five years ago his mission was to cement 
CHA’s position as one of the major players in health and 
aged care in the country. Now, CHA is being increasingly 
recognised for its unique position by policy makers and 
state and federal political leaders. 

“We are about the only player involved in public health, 
private health and aged care in the country. Many 
others pursue individual interests – there are very few 
organisations like CHA that step across all the boundaries. 
“We can provide a whole of sector view. We’re also being 
listened to because we are a faith-based organisation, 
a not-for-profit that is not being driven by shareholder 
interests,” says Paul whose experience in corporate 
Australia is deep and varied.
Paul says this unique position played out to great effect 
with the bill on voluntary assisted dying. “After the Bill 
allowing for voluntary assisted dying was introduced, 
the Victorian Government turned to us for involvement 
with the guidelines. We were able to advocate for our 
staff who could have been placed in extremely difficult 
situations. We wanted to make sure that when the law 
was put in place, there would be adequate protections 
for our staff, our patients and everyone involved. The 
outcomes and exemptions we achieved were extremely 
important.”
He is very proud of CHA’s advocacy work. “We’ve always 
been recognised as very credible leaders in the work we 
do in aged care. Now, we are being credibly heard in the 
healthcare space too.” 
One of the challenges facing any board member at CHA 
is how to reach consensus among the group. He says 
the key is to refer to CHA’s core values and mission. “We 
look at who we are here to serve – and it’s our patients. 
We think about what is best for them. We imagine that 
patient is in the boardroom and ask how would the 
decision affect them? We are here to serve people, and 
we have to do the right thing by them.”
One achievement that he is particularly proud of is 
the Mission Leadership Program. “It’s become hugely 
successful and is key to keeping our mission alive and, 
indeed, to grow it. It became so successful and was too 
complex for CHA to run. That’s a good thing, because the 
program deserves to be part of many more faith-based 
organisations, not just those involved in health.”
Paul is leaving the board, where he was chair, because 
he has served his maximum term as Chairman of St 
Vincent’s Health Australia. He was an Executive Director 
of Macquarie Group for many years and is now Chair 
of Goodstart Early Learning, Chair of Social Ventures 
Australia and a Director at Dementia Australia.
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Don Neander OAM 
Non-Executive Director  
(retired Novembver 2020)  
 

Forty years ago, the delivery of aged care services across 
the country left a lot to be desired. Don Neander helped 
change that by opening Southern Cross Care’s first ever 
aged care home at Holland Park in Brisbane.

Don is stepping down this year from his role as CHA 
Director and board member and chairman of Southern 
Cross Care Queensland.
“I had been a member of the Knights of the Southern 
Cross for ten years and we saw there was a real gap for 
people needing aged care, so we built our first 48-bed 
home in 1978. I picked out beds and crockery and was 
very involved in its design,” he reflects.
“I also helped out with fundraising efforts afterwards 
such as weekend fetes and cleaning windows, because 
back then there was not much government funding.”
Fast forward to 2020, and SCC Qld now operates 
five retirement villages and 11 aged care facilities and 
also provides community services across South East 
Queensland, supporting senior Australians in their  
own homes
Don says the reason SCC aged care facilities have 
flourished, not just in Queensland, but across Australia,  
is because its mission is putting people first. 
“I am 80 and still fit and healthy, but would definitely feel 
very comfortable about going into one of our facilities. 
That’s because from the CEO, to the board, to every 
staff member, everyone here is focused on looking after 
people and serving them.”
Being a not-for-profit is also key to the success of SCC. 
“If you didn’t make a profit, you wouldn’t exist. But, the 
profits we make don’t go into the hands of shareholders. 
They go back into the homes so we can continuously 
improve them.”
He is stepping down in his official roles as CHA board 
member and chairman of SCC Qld, but will still work 
closely with SCC. He’s got no plans to slow down  
and still works three days a week with his day job  
as a self-employed carpenter and builder. Long may  
that continue.

 
 
David Robinson 
Non-Executive Director  
(retired November 2020)  
 

David Robinson laments that it has taken the Aged Care 
Royal Commission and COVID-19 to put aged care under 
the national spotlight, but says the advocacy being done 
by CHA is second to none.

He is stepping down from the CHA board after serving 
for four years and says he is proud of CHA’s initiative in 
running the Fight for Better Aged Care campaign in the 
recent Eden-Monaro by-election.
“Aged care has been ignored for too long by the 
government and has been poorly treated and funded. 
Our campaign in Eden-Monaro showed that there is 
strong support in the community for better aged care  
for senior Australians.”
David is also chair of Catholic Healthcare and says the 
work being done by CHA’s aged care policy team is also 
instrumental to securing a better future for aged care. 
“We are providing expert advice not only to the Royal 
Commission but to key government ministers. CHA is 
incredibly effective at lobbying at the highest level.”
CHA’s Mission Leadership Program is another area he 
says has proved successful since its inception in 2017,  
so successful in fact it’s now being expanded to other  
faith-based organisations.
“By undertaking this program, Catholic health and aged 
care leaders and executives become better formed 
in the spirituality of Catholic identity. They are able to 
engage in discussions offsite and listen to leaders and 
mentors over a two year period. This course provides 
them with the knowledge and foresight that they can 
then pass onto others throughout their respective 
organisations. It is really pleasing that this program can 
now move outside of health and aged care.”
David will continue in his role at Catholic Healthcare  
until he retires in 2021.
 



30

 
 
 
Pat Garcia 
Chief Executive Officer

Pat Garcia, CEO of Catholic Health Australia, is a lawyer, 
policy expert and political strategist who has worked in 
all three levels of government including as the Director 
of Policy to the NSW Premier, as a Senior Adviser in the 
Department of Prime Minister & Cabinet, and as Chair of a 
local government planning committee.
Pat is an experienced board director who has sat on the 
boards of the St Vincent de Paul Society National Council, 
the Law Council of Australia, the Law Society of New South 
Wales, Shine for Kids, Surf Life Saving Sydney and Youth 
Action. He is a former Club Captain of Coogee Surf Life 
Saving Club and former Army Reserves Officer.
Pat has degrees in Law, Finance & Marketing, Public Policy, 
International Law and Security
 

 

 
Julian Lee 
Communications and Media Director

Julian Lee is the Communications and Media Director 
of CHA. Julian spent the majority of his career working 
as a journalist in London and Sydney, specialising in the 
advertising, marketing and media industries as well as 
consumer affairs.
He has worked for both The Times of London and The 
Sydney Morning Herald. More recently he has moved into 
communications, advising clients on how best to navigate a 
fragmented media environment, with his most recent role 
being media director to a state opposition leader.
He joins CHA with a commitment to increase the Catholic 
sector’s voice in both the health and aged care sectors, and 
to promote the values of universal access and compassion.

 
 
 
Nick Mersiades 
Director of Aged Care

Nick has extensive experience in aged and health care, 
including 16 years in the Department of Health and 
Ageing. As well as roles as manager of the Department’s 
Queensland and New South Wales state offices, Nick’s most 
recent role in the Department was head of the Ageing 
and Aged Care Division, where he was responsible for 
the development of aged care policy and for the overall 
management of the Australian Government’s residential 
and community aged care programs.
Prior to joining Catholic Health Australia in November 2008, 
Nick had been General Manager of Strategic Policy and 
Communications in Catholic Healthcare Ltd. In 2012, Nick 
was appointed to the Aged Care Financing Authority (ACFA).
 
 

 
 
 
James Kemp 
Director, Health Policy 

James has worked in health policy and health 
administration in the NSW Government, NSW public health 
system and university sectors. An economist by training, 
James has extensive knowledge of funding models in the 
Australian health care system, as well as developing and 
understanding high-quality and cost-effective health  
service programs.
James is passionate about contributing to an Australian 
health system which provides universal access and 
compassionate care to all who need it, and believes 
integrated care, simplified funding structures and 
embracing digital health are key to a sustainable health 
system into the future.
As the Director, Health Policy at Catholic Health Australia, 
James represents Catholic hospitals and advocates for 
policy and health care improvements which support better 
outcomes for patients.

 
 
 
 
Deborah Reynolds 
Office & Membership Manager

As Office & Membership Manager, Deborah is the friendly, 
welcoming face of CHA for all members and guests and  
she maintains the smooth running of the CHA office.  
She manages client and provider relationships, office 
technology and administration and provides day-to-day 
support to CHA staff.
Deborah provides a support role to CHA events,  
oversees national awards and registrations, and liaises  
with external conference organisers. Deborah also  
manages the CEO's diary. 

OUR STAFF
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Dr Anthony Gooley 
Manager Mission Services

Anthony joined CHA as Manager Mission Services  
in July 2018.
Anthony has had a keen interest over many years in ministry 
leadership and mission identity formation within Catholic 
organisations, both from a research perspective and 
through practical experience. Formerly Head of Theological 
Studies at Broken Bay Institute – The Australian Institute for 
Theological Education, he has held leadership positions 
in Catholic schools, diocesan administration and tertiary 
education. He has also worked as a consultant on mission 
integration and identity formation with a number of 
Catholic organisations in the education and welfare sectors.
Anthony’s theological education had a primary focus on 
ecclesiology and ministry. His studies also include some 
units in Christian ethics and moral theology. In addition 
to qualifications in theology he also has qualifications in 
education and psychology.
He looks forward to supporting the work of Catholic health 
care in the areas of mission leadership formation, pastoral 
care and ethics.
 

 
 
 
Siobhan Tanzer 
Accounts Manager

Siobhan has been a member of the CHA team since 
2006, as of March 2016 she has moved from the 
wider responsibilities of Office/Accounts Management 
and Personal Assistant to CEO to concentrate on the 
Accounts Management. She has earned qualifications in 
Bookkeeping and Business Studies.
Siobhan has worked, at various levels, in not for profit, 
community based organisations since returning to work 
after raising her family. Siobhan is married with five children 
and six grandchildren.
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Stephanie Panchision 
Senior Health Policy Advisor

Originally from the USA, Stephanie holds a Bachelor 
of Science in Biology concentrating in Immunology, a 
Bachelor of Art in International Studies focusing on World 
Politics and Policy, and a Master of Public Health with a 
concentration in Health Promotion.
After working in biotechnology and completing her MPH, 
Stephanie relocated to Alice Springs to work in health 
promotion for an Aboriginal community controlled 
organisation in renal health, and most recently worked 
for the Batchelor Institute training Indigenous students in 
health and science.  

 
 
 
Shona McQueen 
Senior Advisor Aged Care

Shona McQueen joined CHA as our Senior Advisor Aged 
Care in 2018. Before retiring from the Public Service, Shona 
was the Assistant Secretary of Home Care Reform Branch 
in the Ageing and Aged Care Stream. She has had over a 
decade of working in aged care policy at senior levels in 
the Department of Health and Ageing and previously the 
Department of Social Services.
 

 
 
 
Paul Linden 
Senior Advisor Aged Care

Paul Linden is the Senior Aged Care Advisor for CHA.  
He has a passion for social policy and is committed  
to the ongoing improvement of the aged care system.
Paul has previously held a number of senior policy roles 
within the Australian Government Department of Health, 
including in the areas of primary care, Indigenous health, 
mental health, and aged care. Paul’s most recent role within 
the Department was as the Director responsible for future 
reform of the aged care at home programs.
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Health Senior Executive Forum

Sue Williams 
Chief Executive Officer, Cabrini Health

Pat Garcia 
Chief Executive Officer, Catholic Health Australia 

James Kemp 
Director, Health Policy, Catholic Health Australia 

Stephanie Panchision 
Senior Health Policy Advisor, Catholic Health Australia 

Martin Bowles 
Group Chief Executive Officer, Little Company  
of Mary Health Care

Matt Hanrahan 
Chief Operating Offcier, 
Little Company of Mary Health Care

Michelle Somlyay 
Director Revenue Strategy, Mater Group

Gerard Wyvill 
Regional Executive Director North and  
Central Queensland, Mater Health Services

Daniele Doyle 
Executive Director Mater Health, Mater Health Services

Stephen Cornelissen 
Group Chief Executive Officer, Mercy Health

Jason Payne 
Chief Executive - Health Services, Mercy Health

Shane Kelly 
Group Chief Executive Officer, St John of God Health Care

Bryan Pyne 
Chief Operating Officer, St John of God Health Care

Toby Hall 
Group Chief Executive, St Vincents Health Australia

David Swan 
CEO St. Vincent’s Private Hospitals,  
St Vincents Health Australia

Cathy Ryan
Group Director Health Funding & Patient Services,  
Cabrini Health 
(formerly representing St John of God Health Care)

Steve Brierley 
Chief Executive, St Vincent’s Hospital Lismore

Peter Steer 
Group Senior Executive, Mater Group

Directors of Nursing and Midwifery
Anne Zandegu 
Executive Director of Nursing, Cabrini Health

Kris Salisbury 
National Director of Nursing, Little Company  
of Mary Health Care

Pam Walsh 
Director of Nursing and Midwifery, Mater Health

Sue Thurbon 
Executive Officer, Mercy Health

Catherine Hackney 
Director of Nursing and Midwifery, Mater Health

Jennifer Pitt 
Director of Nursing, Mater Health

Tracey Hutley 
A/Chief Nursing and Midwifery Officer, Mater Health

Karen Gerrard 
Executive Director of Clinical Services, Mater Health

Maree Reynolds 
Director of Nursing – Mother, Babies and Women’s Health, 
Mater Health

Sharon Donovan 
Executive Director Of Nursing and Midwifery, Mercy Health

Dani Meinema 
Group Director Nursing Services, St John of God Health Care

James Kemp 
Director Health Policy, Catholic Health Australia 

Stephanie Panchision 
Senior Health Policy Advisor, Catholic Health Australia 

The Catholic Health Australia Secretariat wishes to acknowledge and thank 
all committee members for their hard work and commitment in the past 
year. We wish to particularly thank the following committee chairs who have 
served in the past year:

Health Senior Executive Forum 
Martin Bowles and Shane Kelly
Directors of Nursing and Midwifery 
Dani Meinema and Lee Boyd.

Learning and Development Working Group 
Jane Cleveland and Marlene Redelinghuys
Catholic Palliative Care Alliance 
Fran Gore

OUR COMMITTEES

Committee Chairs
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Catholic Health Australia Learning and Development Working Group

Rick Peebles 
A/Director Clinical Education, Cabrini Health

Stephanie Panchision 
Senior Health Policy Advisor, Catholic Health Australia

James Kemp 
Director of Health Policy, Catholic Health Australia

Loren Madsen  
National L&D Advisor Clinical, Little Company  
of Mary Health Care

Jane Cleveland 
National Learning and Development Manager,  
Little Company of Mary Health Care

Katherine Jackman 
Director Learning and Development, Mater Education

Marlene Redelinghuys 
Director Practice Developmemt, Mater Education

Talissha Wagner 
Manager Organisational Development,  
Mater Health Services, North Queensland

Kassandra Russel 
Learning Team Manager, Mercy Health

Lisa Faulds 
Group Manager Learning and Development,  
St John of God Health Care

Wendy Bardsley 
Group Learning and Develoment Manager, St Vincents 
Health Australia

Australian Private Hospitals Association/Catholic Health Australia Joint Workforce Committee
Anne Spence 
Director of Infrastructure, Cabrini Health

James Kemp 
Director, Health Policy, Catholic Health Australia 

David Izzard 
Group Director People and Culture,  
Little Company of Mary Health Care

Sharron McMahon 
Chief People Officer, Mater Health

Rita Maguire 
Group Director Workforce, St John of God Health Care

Wendy Bardsley 
Group Learning & Development Manager,  
St Vincents Health Australia

Stephanie Panchision 
Senior Health Policy Advisor, Catholic Health Australia 

Catholic Palliative Care Alliance

Phillip Good 
Palliative Medicine Specialist, Mater Health

Michelle Somlyay 
Director Revenue Strategy, Mater Health

Mary Ringstad 
Director of Mission, Little Company of Mary Health Care

Frank Brennan 
Palliative Care Specialist, Little Company of Mary Health Care

Naomi McGowan 
National Project Manager, Palliative and End of Life Care 
Strategy, Little Company of Mary Health Care

Julie Fleming 
General Manager Mission and Identity, Cabrini

Angela Baird 
Nurse Manager, Cabrini Health

Cathy Ryan 
Group Manager, Health Funds, St John of God Health Care

Rachel Standing 
Project Manager – Strategic Development,  
St John of God Health Care

Mark Boughey 
Director Palliative Medicine, St Vincent’s Melbourne,  
St Vincents Health Australia

Alexander Clark 
Group Manager, Government Relations,  
St Vincents Health Australia

Fran Gore 
Mercy Palliative Care Services Manager, Mercy

Deanne Layton 
Palliative Care Nurse Unit Manager, Mercy

Shona McQueen 
Senior Aged Care Policy Advisor, Catholic Health Australia 

Stephanie Panchision 
Senior Health Policy Advisor, Catholic Health Australia 

James Kemp 
Director Health Policy, Catholic Health Australia 
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Catholic Health Australia Policy Committee – Private Health Insurance reform

Craig Bosworth
Group Director, Strategy and Marketing, Cabrini

Matt Hanrahan
Chief Operating Officer,  
Little Company of Mary Health Care

Michelle Somlyay
Director Revenue Strategy, Mater Health

Cathy Ryan
Group Director Health Funding & Patient Services, 
Cabrini Health 
(formerly representing St John of God Health Care)

Jo Chapman
General Manager Advocacy, St Vincents Health Australia

Stephanie Panchision
Senior Health Policy Advisor, Catholic Health Australia 

OUR COMMITTEESOUR COMMITTEES

Mission and Identity Committee

Catholic Health Australia Aged Care Committee Members

Mark Green (Chair)  
National Director of Mission, LCM Health Care
Eleanor Roderick 
Group Coordinator Pastoral Care and Palliative Services, St 
John of God Health Care
Cath Garner 
Executive Director Mission & Strategy, Cabrini Health
Sr Maureen Gleeson rsm 
Catholic Religious Australia
Fr Cormac Nagle ofm 
Ethicist, Melbourne

Julia Abrahams 
Director of Mission and Chief Counsel,  
Catholic Healthcare Limited
Julia Trimboli 
Director of Mission Services, Cabrini Health
Madonna McGahan 
Executive Director Mission Leadership,  
Mater Health Services
Lisa McDonald 
Group Mission Leader, St Vincent's Health Australia

Paul Andrew 
Chief Executive, Catholic Homes

Amanda Bowe 
Managing Director, Mercy Health

Helen Emmerson 
CEO, Southern Cross Care NSW and ACT

Tony Godfrey 
CEO, OzCare

Lincoln Hopper 
CEO, St Vincent's Care Services

David Maher 
Managing Director, Catholic Healthcare Ltd

Bryan McLoughlin 
National Director Retirement Communities,  
LCM Health Care

David Moran  
CEO, Southern Cross Care SA&NT

Joanne Penman 
Executive Director, MercyCare

Marcus Riley 
CEO, Queensland Hibernian Friendly Society Ltd

Sonya Smart 
CEO, Villa Maria Catholic Homes

Anthony Smith 
CEO, MercyCare
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Catholic Health Australia also represents members on the following external committees:

• Department of Health’s Health Sector Group for the 
Trusted Information Sharing Network overseen by 
AG Dept 

• Ministerial Advisory Committee on  
Out of Pocket costs 

• IHPA National Hospital Cost Data Collection - 
Private Sector forum 

• IHPA Stakeholder Advisory Committee -  
Health Technology Policy Advisory Committee

• IHPA Joint Teaching,  
Training & Research Working Group

• National Procedure Banding Committee

• Medical Workforce Reform Advisory Committee 
(MWRAC)

• NMTAN data sub-committee

• National Nursing & Midwifery Education Advisory 
Network (NNMEAN) No more

•	 Office	of	the	Chief	Nursing	and	Midwifery	Officer	
-Nursing and Midwifery Strategic Reference Group

• Private Hospital Sector Committee of Australian 
Commission on Safety and Quality

• Patient Safety Reporting Steering Committee  
of Australian Commission on Safety and Quality  
in Health Care

• Prostheses List Advisory Committee

• MBS Review: Pathology Clinical

• Committee (PCC)MBS Review:  
Pathology Business Group

• MBS Review: Diagnostic Imaging Clinical 
Committee/Bone Densitometry Working Group

• MBS Review: Diagnostic Imaging Clinical 
Committee / Imaging of the knee working Group

• MBS Review: Intensive Care and Emergency 

Medicine Clinical Committee

• MBS Review: Oncology Clinical Committee

• MBS Review: Renal Medicine Clinical Committee

• MBS Review: Gastroenterology Clinical Committee

• APHA/Catholic Health Australia Joint Workforce 
Committee

• The Minister for Aged Care’s Aged Care Sector 
Committee

• Aged Care Financing Authority

• The National Aged Care Alliance

• Residential Aged Care Funding Reform  
Working Group

• Aged Care Quality and Safety Commission 
Consultative Forum

• Aged Care COVID-19 Stakeholder Support Group

• Dementia Services Australia Expert  
Reference Group

• ELDAC Partners Group 

• ELDAC communications Group

• ELDAC Toolkit Working Group

• ELDAC Workforce

• ELDAC Digital Group

• ELDAC Strategic and Evaluation Group

• ELDAC Service Partnerships
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Archdiocese of Canberra/Goulburn
ACT

Archdiocese of Melbourne
VIC

Archdiocese of Sydney
NSW

Board of Ownership of the Canossian Sisters
QLD

Calvary Ministries
NSW

Cardinal Stepinac Village
NSW

Catholic Healthcare Ltd
NSW

Catholic Homes Incorporated
WA

Catholic Women’s League Archdoicese of Sydney 
Inc
NSW

Centacare Brisbane
QLD

Daughters of Charity of St Vincent de Paul
NSW

Diocese of Lismore
NSW

Diocese of Port Pirie
SA

Dominican Sisters of Malta in NSW
NSW

Dominican Sisters of Malta in Victoria
VIC

Franciscan Missionaries of Mary
NSW

Franciscan Missionaries of the Divine Motherhood
UK

Franciscan Sisters of the Heart of Jesus
SA

Institute of Sisters of Mercy of Australia & Papua 
New Guinea
NSW

Little Sisters of the Poor
NSW

Mary Aikenhead Ministries
NSW

Mercy Partners
QLD

MercyCare Limited
WA

Missionary Sisters of the Sacred Heart of Jesus
Vic

Mount La Verna Retirement Village Inc
WA

Ozcare
QLD

Queensland Hibernian Society
QLD

Sisters of St Paul De Chartres
QLD

Southern Cross Care (Broken Hill) Ltd
NSW

Southern Cross Care (NSW & ACT)
NSW

Southern Cross Care (Qld) Inc
QLD

Southern Cross Care (SA & NT) Inc
SA

Southern Cross Care (Tas) Inc
TAS

Southern Cross Care (WA) Inc
WA

St John of God Health Care
WA

St Vincent de Paul Queensland
QLD

St Vincent De Paul Society
NSW

The ADRIA Village Ltd
ACT

Trustees of Catholic Aged Care Sydney
NSW

Villa Maria Catholic Homes
VIC

OUR MEMBERS
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

 
CATHOLIC HEALTH AUSRALIA LIMITED 

ABN 30 351 500 103 
 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
 

 
Your directors present this report on the company for the financial period ended 30 June 2020. 

 
Directors 
The names of each person who has been a director during the year and to the date of this report are: 
 

 
Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise 
stated. 
 
Principal Activities 
The principal activities of the company during the period were to promote justice and compassion in health care, 
influence public policy in relation to health and aged care, and strengthen the presence and influence of Catholic 
health and aged care within the Australasian health care system. 
 
Short-term and long-term objectives 
The company’s short-term objectives are to advance health, social, and public welfare as the national advocate 
for the healing Ministry of the Catholic Church in Australia by supporting the service capacity and promoting the 
Catholic identity of its members, to contribute to the fulfilment of the Mission of the Catholic Church.  
 
The company’s long-term objectives are to pursue direct benevolent relief of illness, direct benevolent relief of 
the needs of the aged, and direct benevolent relief of poverty as a social determinant of health for the benefit of 
all Australians. 
 
Strategies 
The company has adopted a strategic plan to operate through the period 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2020. The three 
strategic priorities of that plan are: 
- Advocacy: promote catholic health, aged and community care services’ unique role and continued 
presence within the broader Australian health system and community. 
- Relationships: support catholic health, aged and community care services to reflect the life of the Catholic 
Church. 
- Capability: build the capacities of our people in support of catholic health, aged, and community services. 
 
 
 
 
 

Hon John Watkins AM (Chair) Current 

Mr James Birch AM Commenced 28 September 2019 

Virginia Bourke Commenced 6 November 2019 

Sr Ruth Durick osu Current 

Dr Maureen Gleeson OAM PHD Current 

Mr Paul McClintock AO Commenced 12 May 2020 

Mr Donald Neander OAM Current 

Mr Julien O’Connell AO Current 

Ms Jenny Parker Current 

Mr Paul Robertson AO  Resigned 19 March 2020 

Mr David Robinson Current 

Hon Kerry Sanderson AC CVO Current 

Mr Francis Sullivan AO Commenced 23 September 2019 

Bishop William Wright DD Current 
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CATHOLIC HEALTH AUSTRALIA LIMITED 
ABN 30 351 500 103 

 
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED) 

 

 
 

Mr James Birch AM - Non-Executive Board Director 

Qualifications  Bachelor of Health Administration (UNSW) 

Experience - Chair of Little Company of Mary Health Care; Chair of Lifeblood; 
Chair of the Women’s and Children’s Health Network (SA);chair of 
Clevertar Pty Ltd and Director of the Cancer SA Board 

Appointment - CHA Constitution Rule 22 (a) (i) – Little Company of Mary Limited 

Ms Virginia Bourke -  

Qualifications - BA/LLB (Hons) MA Monash University 
Graduate - Australian Institute of Company Directors 
 

Experience - Chair, Mercy Health 
Chair, St John Ambulance Victoria 
Director, St John Ambulance Australia 
Director, Mater Group 
Director, Caritas Australia 
Member, Council of Board Chairs (State Government of Victoria) 
Member, Boards Appointment Committee, Catholic Archdiocese 
of Melbourne 
Member, PM Glynn Institute Advisory Council,  Australian 
Catholic University  
Chair, Safeguarding Committee, Institute of Sisters of Mercy of 
Australia and Papua New Guinea 
Member, Safeguarding Committee, Kildare Ministries 
Consultant, National health team, MinterEllison 
Lawyer and consultant in private practice with broad experience in 
general commercial, corporate governance and directors duties. 
Formerly Special Counsel at MinterEllison and General Counsel 
at ISMAPNG. 

Appointment - CHA Constitution Rule 22 (b) - Aged Care 

Sr Ruth Durick OSU -  

Qualifications  BA (ANU); Dip Ed (Mitchell College of Advanced Education);  
B.Theol. (Melbourne College of Divinity); MLitt (Peace Studies) 
(UNE); MA (Social Ecology) (UWS) 

Experience  President Catholic Religious Australia 2016-2018;  
Member Catholic Religious Australia Council 2013-2018; 
Member of Ursuline International Justice and Peace Committee 
2008-2011;  
Member Ursuline General Finance Commission 2016-2020; 
Director, St Ursula’s College Toowoomba 2007-2016; 
Chair of Members, St Ursula’s College Toowoomba 2012-2016; 
Member, Australian Institute of Company Directors 

Appointment  CHA Constitution Rule 23.4 - Board Appointee (1) 

Dr Maureen Gleeson PH D OAM   

Qualifications  Bachelor of Health Services Administration 
Masters of Health Services Administration 
PH D (University of NSW) 
Nursing qualifications in General Nursing, Midwifery and Infant 
Welfare 

Experience  Wide experience in the management of general and obstetric 
hospitals in both the public and private sectors. Held senior 
positions in the NSW Health Department in design and planning of 
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CATHOLIC HEALTH AUSTRALIA LIMITED 
ABN 30 351 500 103 

 
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED) 

 

 
 

tertiary level specialist services and in policy development.  
Appointed by the Minister of Health (NSW) as a member of the 
Panel for the Medical Tribunal and Professional Standards 
Committee under the Medical Practice Act 1992 (2008-2017) 

Appointment  CHA Constitution Rule 22(d) - Catholic Religious Australia 
designate. 

Paul McClintock AO - 
 

Qualifications - BA, LLB 

Experience - Chair of St Vincent’s Health Australia, I-Med Radiology and Laser 
Clinics Australia. Former positions include Secretary to Cabinet in 
the Federal Government, Chair of Medibank Private, Symbion 
Health, Affinity Health, the Woolcock Institute of Medical 
Research, the COAG Reform Council  and Sydney Health 
Partners, National Chair of CEDA and a Commissioner of the 
Health Insurance Commission. 
 

Appointment - CHA Constitution Rule 22(a) (v) – St Vincent’s Health Australia 
Limited 

Donald Neander OAM  Building Contractor 

Qualifications  Carpenter and Joiner 

Experience  Don has taken an active role in the planning of building works 
associated with all SCC (Qld) complexes.  He is a qualified 
carpenter and joiner and has run his own building business since 
1974.  Don, has been a long serving Board Member and now 
undertakes the role of Chairman.  He has previously been a 
member of the State Council of the Knights of Southern Cross and 
held the positions of State Chairman and Deputy National 
Chairman of the KSC.   

Appointment  CHA Constitution Rule 22 (a) (iii) Southern Cross Australia 

Julien O’Connell AO - Accountant 

Qualifications - • Diploma of Accounting 
• Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Directors 

Experience - • Chairman, Villa Maria Catholic Homes 
• Director of a number of related entities 
• Enterprise Ireland (Trade Attache) 
• Board Member, Finance Council, Catholic Archdiocese of 

Melbourne 
• Chairman, CEO Institute (Syndicate 4) - Mentoring to CEO and 

Chairs of Member Companies 
•  
• Member, Council of Board Chairs (State Government of Victoria) 
• Member, Equestrian Order of the Holy Sepulchre of Jerusalem 
• Fellow, Australian Institute of Company Directors 
• Acting Chancellor, Australian Catholic University 
• Chair, PM Glynn Institute 

Appointment - CHA Constitution Rule 22(b)  

Special responsibilities - • Chair of the CHA Audit & Risk Committee 

Jennifer Parker - • Accountant 

Qualifications - • B.COMM (UQ) 
• Fellow of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand 

(CAANZ) 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED) 

 

 
 

Experience - • Partner Ernst & Young (EY) 
• Oceania Advisory, Health & Life Sciences Leader  
• Chair, Catholic Education – Archdiocese of Brisbane 
• Deputy Chair, Archdiocesan Finance Council – Archdiocese of 

Brisbane 
• Deputy Chancellor and Council Member, Queensland University of 

Technology 
•  Board Member Queensland Museum 
• Board Member, Mater Health Group; Chair – Finance and Audit 

Committee, Mater Health Group 
• Board Member, Cancer Council Australia 
• Former Chair, Centacare Council 
•  

Appointment - • CHA Constitution Rule 22 (a) (ii) – Mercy Partners  

Special responsibilities - • Deputy Chair, Catholic Health Australia Board;  Member of the CHA 
Risk & Audit Committee 

Paul Robertson AO  •  

Qualifications - B.Comm; FCPA 

Experience - • Former Executive Director of Macquarie Bank with extensive 
experience in banking, finance and risk management.  

• Chair, Social Ventures Australia 
• Chair, St Vincent’s Health Australia Group of companies 

 
• Chair, Trustees of St Vincent’s Hospital Sydney 
• Chair, Tonic Health Media 
• Director, Dementia Australia 
• Director, Financial Markets Foundation for Children 
• Director, Telco Together Foundation. 

Appointment  - CHA Constitution Rule 22(a)(iii) Resigned 19 March 2020 

Special responsibilities  Chair, Catholic Health Australia Board from 23 May 2018 to 30 July 
2019 

David Robinson   

Qualifications - Bachelor of Arts (Economics) and Batchelor of Laws degrees 

Experience - Following a career as a lawyer and company secretary of AMP, 
David was a non-executive director in the for-profit sector 
(companies in the CBA and AMP Groups) and in the not-for-profit 
sector (Monte Sant’ Angelo Mercy College Limited). He is currently 
Chair of the Catholic Healthcare Limited Board. David is a member 
of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. 

Appointment - CHA Constitution Rule 22 (b) – Aged Care 

Hon Kerry Sanderson AC CVO   

Qualifications - Bachelor of Science; Bachelor of Economics; Hon Dlitt (UWA); 

Doctor of the University (Murdoch University); FAICD; FIPAA. 
 

Experience - Current Chair and former Board member of St John of God Health 
Care Inc; Chancellor of Edith Cowan University; former Governor 
of Western Australia; Chair of the WA Parks Foundation; former 
Chair of Gold Corporation; former independent chair of the State 
Emergency Management Committee; former Non-Executive 
Director of Downer EDI and Atlas Iron; former Board Member of 
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Senses Australia, the Paraplegic Benefit Fund and former patron 
of a number of organisations; former Agent General for WA, CEO 
of Fremantle Ports, Deputy Director General of Transport for WA 
and Director of the Economic and Financial Policy Division of the 
Western Australian State Treasury. 

Appointment - CHA Constitution Rule 22 (a) (iv) St john of God Health Care Inc 

Mr Francis Sullivan AO -  

Qualifications - MA (Theol); Grad Dip Ed. 

Experience - Executive Chair of the Mater Health Group Queensland; Director 
of Mercy Health Australia; Director of Catholic Social Services 
Australia; Adjunct Professor at ACU.  
Previously CEO of the Truth, Justice and Healing Council; 
Secretary General of the AMA; CEO of Catholic Health Australia. 

Appointment - CHA Constitution Rule 22 (b) –Rural or Remote Health and/or Aged 
Care 

Hon John Watkins AM   

Qualifications - LLB; Master of Arts; Diploma of Education; Hon DLitt Macq 

Experience - Ministerial Appointment to the Central Coast local Health Board 
2020; A member of the Advisory Committee for the Centre of 
Emotional Health at Macquarie University;  Non-executive director 
and Chair of the McKell Institute and Mary MacKillop, and a 
member of the Board of Catholic Professional Standards. 
Chancellor of the University of New England; former CEO of 
Alzheimer’s Australia NSW; Chair of Calvary Health Care Board 
2010-2019;Member of Parliament (NSW) 1995-2008 where he 
served, for 10 years, as a minister holding portfolios of Fair Trading; 
Sport and recreation; Police and Corrective Services; Transport; 
Finance; State Development; Education and Deputy Premier 

Appointment - CHA Constitution Rule 22 (b) 

Special responsibility - Chair of the Catholic Health Australia Board from 30 July 2019 

William Wright DD - Bishop of Maitland-Newcastle 

Qualifications  BTh; BA (Hons) 

Experience  Bishop of Maitland-Newcastle;  
Currently a Member of the Australian Catholic Bishops Conference 
Commission for Social Justice – Mission and Service;  
Bishops Commission for Evangelisation Laity and Ministry. 

Served as Co-Chair of the National Committee for Professional 
Standards; 
Member of the Truth, Justice and Healing Council; 
Bishops Commission for Church Ministry; 
Bishops Commission for Ecumenism and Inter-Religious relations. 
 

Appointment - Rule 22 (d) Australian Catholic Bishops Conference designate 
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Meetings of Directors 
During the financial year, five meetings of directors were held. Attendances by each director were as follows: 
 
 Number eligible to attend Number attended 
Hon John Watkins AM (Chair) 5 5 
Mr Jim Birch AM 4 3 
Ms Virginia Bourke 3 3 
Sr Ruth Durick 5 5 
Sr Maureen Gleeson 5 5 
Mr Paul McClintock AO 2 2 
Mr Don Neander OAM 5 5 
Mr Julien O’Connell AO 5 5 
Ms Jenny Parker 5 4 

Mr Paul Robertson AO (Chair) 3 3 

Mr David Robinson 5 5 
Hon Kerry Sanderson AC CVO 5 4 
Mr Francis Sullivan AO 4 4 
Most Rev William Wright DD 5 4 

 
The company is incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 and is a company limited by guarantee. If the 
company is wound up, the constitution states that each member is required to contribute a maximum of $10 each 
towards meeting any outstanding obligations of the company.  At 30 June 2020, the total amount that members 
of the company are liable to contribute if the company is wound up is $10. At 30 June 2020, the number of 
members was 55. 
 
Auditor’s Independence Declaration 
The lead auditor’s independence declaration for the year ended 30 June 2020 has been received and can be 
found on page 9 of the financial report.  
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors. 
 
 

 

Director 
___________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Director 
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AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 
 
 
As lead auditor for the audit of the financial report of Catholic Health Australia Limited for the year ended 30 June 
2020, I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of: 
 
(i) the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Australian Charities and Not for profits Commission 

Act 2012 in relation to the audit; and 
(ii) any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 
 
 
 
 

RSM Australia Partners 
 
 
 
 
 
Canberra, Australian Capital Territory    RODNEY MILLER 
Dated: 19 October 2020 Partner 
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CATHOLIC HEALTH AUSTRALIA LIMITED 
ABN 30 351 500 103 

 
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 
 

  2020  2019 
 Note $ $ 

Revenue 2 3,014,792  3,319,256 
Other income 2 147,447  73,415 

  3,162,239  3,392,671 
     

Employee benefits  (1,533,567)  (1,604,366) 
Sponsorship, grants, honorariums and donations 3 (56,450)  (125,722) 
Travel  (290,618)  (365,055) 
Venue and venue hire  (90,114)  (160,004) 
Phone and internet   (15,697)  (17,887) 
Rent and utilities  (6,902)  (82,113) 
Accounting   (31,514)  (25,266) 
Bad debt expense and fee adjustments  (23,220)  (18,368) 
Consultancy 3 (223,485)  (281,425) 
Depreciation and amortisation  (210,986)  (146,284) 
Insurance  (33,104)  (33,978) 
Office supplies, printing, postage  (36,474)  (70,249) 
Other expenses  (215,558)  (305,579) 

 
 (2,767,689)  (3,236,296) 

     

Surplus before income tax  394,550  156,375 
Tax expense  -  - 
Net surplus  394,550  156,375 
Other comprehensive income  -  - 
Total comprehensive income   394,550  156,375 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The above statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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CATHOLIC HEALTH AUSTRALIA LIMITED 
ABN 30 351 500 103 

 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 30 JUNE 2020 
 

  2020  2019 
 Note $  $ 

ASSETS     

Current assets     

Cash and cash equivalents 4 3,201,184  3,000,429 
Trade and other receivables 5 163,485  111,738 
Other current assets 6 126,644  139,459 
Total current assets  3,491,313  3,251,626 

     

Non-current assets     

Property, plant and equipment 7 18,657  20,453 
Right of use asset 7 4,665  - 
Intangible assets 8 -  140,318 
Total non-current assets  23,322  160,771 
TOTAL ASSETS  3,514,635  3,412,397 

     

LIABILITIES     

Current liabilities     

Trade and other payables 9 258,064  277,301 
Income in advance 10 -  298,106 
Employee provisions 11 184,390  159,359 
Total current liabilities  442,454  734,766 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  442,454  734,766 

     

NET ASSETS  3,072,181  2,677,631 
     

EQUITY     

Retained Earnings  2,677,631  2,521,256 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year  394,550  156,375 
TOTAL EQUITY  3,072,181  2,677,631 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

 

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Total 
 $  $ 
    

Balance as at 30 June 2018 2,521,256  2,521,256 
Surplus for the year attributable to members of the entity 156,375  156,375 
Balance as at 30 June 2019 2,677,631  2,677,631 
    

Surplus for the year attributable to members of the entity 394,550  394,550 
Balance as at 30 June 2020 3,072,181  3,072,181 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 
 

  2020  2019 
 Note $  $ 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

Receipts from memberships, workshops and sales  2,871,368  3,217,599 
Payments to suppliers and employees  (2,644,083)  (3,239,817) 
Interest payments  (1,933)  - 
Interest received  43,332  62,873 
Net cash generated from operating activities  268,684  40,655 

     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

Payments for Property, Plant and Equipment  (2,302)  (14,293) 
Proceeds from disposals  -  750 
Net cash used in investing activities  (2,302)  (13,543) 

     

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

Lease payments  (65,627)  - 
Net cash used from financing activities  (65,627)  - 

     

Net increase in cash held  200,755  27,112 
Cash on hand at beginning of the financial year  3,000,429  2,973,317 
Cash on hand at end of the financial year 4 3,201,184  3,000,429 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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CATHOLIC HEALTH AUSTRALIA LIMITED 

ABN 30 351 500 103 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

 
The financial statements cover Catholic Health Australia Limited as an individual entity, incorporated and 
domiciled in Australia. Catholic Health Australia Limited is a company limited by guarantee. 
 
New or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted 
The company has adopted all of the new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period. 
  
Any new or amended Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been early 
adopted. 
 
The following Accounting Standards and Interpretations are most relevant to the entity: 
 
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
The entity has adopted AASB 15 from 1 July 2019. The standard provides a single comprehensive, contract-
based revenue recognition model. The core principle of the standard is that an entity must recognise revenue to 
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to 
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The standard introduces a new 
measurement approach that is based on an allocation of the transaction price. This is described further in the 
accounting policies below. Contracts with customers are presented in an entity's statement of financial position 
as a contract liability, a contract asset, or a receivable, depending on the relationship between the entity's 
performance and the customer's payment.  
 
Impact of adoption 
AASB 15 was adopted using the modified retrospective approach and as such comparatives have not been 
restated, the impact was not material. 
 
AASB 16 Leases 
The entity has adopted AASB 16 from 1 July 2019. The standard replaces AASB 117 'Leases' and for lessees 
eliminates the classifications of operating leases and finance leases. Except for short-term leases and leases of 
low-value assets, right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities are recognised in the statement of 
financial position. Straight-line operating lease expense recognition is replaced with a depreciation charge for the 
right-of-use assets (included in operating costs) and an interest expense on the recognised lease liabilities 
(included in finance costs). In the earlier periods of the lease, the expenses associated with the lease under 
AASB 16 will be higher when compared to lease expenses under AASB 117. However, EBITDA (Earnings Before 
Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation) results improve as the operating expense is now replaced by 
interest expense and depreciation in profit or loss. For classification within the statement of cash flows, the 
interest portion is disclosed in operating activities and the principal portion of the lease payments are separately 
disclosed in financing activities  
 
Impact of adoption 
AASB 16 was adopted using the modified retrospective approach and as such the comparatives have not been 
restated, the impact was not material.  

AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities 
The entity has adopted AASB 1058 from 1 July 2019. The standard replaces AASB 1004 'Contributions' in respect 
to income recognition requirements for not-for-profit entities. The timing of income recognition under AASB 1058 
is dependent upon whether the transaction gives rise to a liability or other related amount at the time of receipt. 
Income is recognised under this standard in the following circumstances:  

- an asset is received in a transaction, such as by way of grant, bequest or donation; and 
- there has either been no consideration transferred by the entity, or the consideration paid by the entity 

for the asset is significantly less than the asset's fair value; and  
- the asset is provided principally enable the entity to further its objectives.  

For transfers of financial assets to the entity which enable it to acquire or construct a recognisable non-financial 
asset, the entity recognises a liability amounting to the excess of the fair value of the transfer received over any 
related amounts recognised. Related amounts recognised may relate to contributions by owners, revenue or 
contract liabilities recognised under AASB 15, lease liabilities in accordance with AASB 16, financial instruments 
in accordance with AASB 9, or provisions in accordance with AASB 137. This liability is brought to account as 
income over the period in which the entity satisfies its performance obligation.  
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CATHOLIC HEALTH AUSTRALIA LIMITED 

ABN 30 351 500 103 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

 
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Impact of adoption 
AASB 1058 was adopted using the modified retrospective approach and as such comparatives have not been 
restated , the impact was not material. 

Basis of preparation 
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Australian Charities and 
Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements 
and Interpretations of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB’).  The company is a not-for-profit entity 
for financial reporting purposes under Australian Accounting Standards. 
 
Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 
 
Comparative figures 
Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in these 
financial statements. 
 
Income tax 
As the company is a charitable institution in terms of subsection 50-5 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997, 
as amended, it is exempt from paying income tax. 
 
Goods and Services Tax (GST) and other similar taxes 
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred 
is not recoverable from the tax authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of the acquisition of the 
asset or as part of the expense. 
 
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of 
GST recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included in other receivables or other payables in the 
statement of financial position. 
 
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing 
activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the tax authority, are presented as operating cash flows. 
 
Leases 
A lease liability is recognised at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially recognised at 
the present value of the lease payments to be made over the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate 
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the consolidated entity's incremental borrowing 
rate. Lease payments comprise of fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments 
that depend on an index or a rate, amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, exercise price 
of a purchase option when the exercise of the option is reasonably certain to occur, and any anticipated 
termination penalties. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are expensed in the 
period in which they are incurred. Lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. The carrying amounts are remeasured if there is a change in the following: future lease payments arising 
from a change in an index or a rate used; residual guarantee; lease term; certainty of a purchase option and 
termination penalties. When a lease liability is remeasured, an adjustment is made to the corresponding right-of 
use asset, or to profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is fully written down. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



51

NOTES TO  THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   

 

 
 

 
CATHOLIC HEALTH AUSTRALIA LIMITED 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

 
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
Current and non-current classification 
Assets and liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position based on current and non-current 
classification. An asset is classified as current when: it is either expected to be realised or intended to be sold or 
consumed in the company's normal operating cycle; it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is expected 
to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period; or the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted 
from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. All other assets 
are classified as non-current. 
  
A liability is classified as current when: it is either expected to be settled in the company's normal operating cycle; 
it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or 
there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting 
period. All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
 
Fair value measurement 
When an asset or liability, financial or non-financial, is measured at fair value for recognition or disclosure 
purposes, the fair value is based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date; and assumes that the transaction 
will take place either: in the principal market; or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous 
market. 
 
Fair value is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or 
liability, assuming they act in their economic best interests. For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement 
is based on its highest and best use.  
 
Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates its 
judgements and estimates in relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. 
Management bases its judgements, estimates and assumptions on historical experience and on other various 
factors, including expectations of future events, management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
The resulting accounting judgements and estimates will seldom equal the related actual results. The judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities (refer to the respective notes) within the next financial year are discussed below. 
 
Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic 
Judgement has been exercised in considering the impacts that the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has had, 
or may have, on the entity based on known information. There does not currently appear to be either any 
significant impact upon the financial statements or any significant uncertainties with respect to events or 
conditions which may impact the entity unfavourably as at the reporting date or subsequently as a result of the 
Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. 
 
Estimation of useful lives of assets 
The company determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its 
property, plant and equipment and finite life intangible assets. The useful lives could change significantly as a 
result of technical innovations or some other event. The depreciation and amortisation charge will increase where 
the useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have 
been abandoned or sold will be written off or written down. 
 
Employee benefits provision 
The liability for employee benefits expected to be settled more than 12 months from the reporting date are 
recognised and measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows to be made in respect of all 
employees at the reporting date. In determining the present value of the liability, estimates of attrition rates and 
pay increases through promotion and inflation have been taken into account.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

 
 2020  2019 

 $  $ 
NOTE 2. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME    
Revenue:    
Membership subscription 2,204,647  2,165,395 
Workshop and conference  91,801  478,534 
Ministry Leadership Program 474,777  557,247 
Sale of goods 7,333  13,075 
Sponsorships 152,182  34,773 
Grant income 84,052  70,232 

 3,014,792  3,319,256 
Other revenue:    
Interest received 43,332  62,873 
Government subsidy 100,000  - 
Other income  4,115  10,542 

 147,447  73,415 
      
 3,162,239  3,392,671 

 
Accounting Policy 
Membership subscription revenue 
Revenue is recognised at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity is expected to be 
entitled in exchange for transferring the service to the customer. 

Grants 
Grants are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and all attached conditions will be complied with. 

Ministry Leadership Program and sponsorship for the program 
Revenue is recognised as each course is delivered to each cohort along with the related sponsorship money. 
The remaining balance is recognised as unearned income. 

Interest  
Interest revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of 
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period 
using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. 

Other income 
Events, workshops, sale of goods and other income is recognised when the right to receive payment is 
established. 

 
NOTE 3. EXPENSES    

Consulting expenses    
IT consulting fees 14,841  35,923 
Consultancy fees - Media 94,242  106,378 
Consultancy fees - Policy 38,369  68,009 
Consultancy fees - Others 67,933  6,034 
Artwork and design fees 8,100  41,756 
Conference organiser -  23,325 

 223,485  281,425 
Sponsorship, honorariums and donations    

Honorariums 53,450  62,555 
Sponsorship and  donations 3,000  11,000 
Grants- Apunipima Cape York Health Council -  52,167 

 56,450  125,722 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

 
 2020  2019 

 $  $ 
NOTE 4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS    

Cash at bank 3,200,884  3,000,129 
Cash on hand 300  300 

 3,201,184  3,000,429 
    

Accounting Policy 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 
NOTE 5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES    

Accounts receivable 193,498  134,140 
Expected credit loss (30,013)  (22,402) 

 163,485  111,738 
    

Accounting Policy 
Trade and other receivables are recognised at amortised cost, less any allowance for expected credit loss.  

 
NOTE 6. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS     

Accrued income 73,088  7,541 
Prepayments 53,556  131,918 

 126,644  139,459 
 

NOTE 7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT    

Office Furniture    

At cost 95,760  93,458 
Less accumulated depreciation (77,103)  (73,005) 

 18,657  20,453 
Right-of-use assets    

At cost 71,235  - 
Less accumulated depreciation  (66,570)  - 

 4,665  - 
 23,322  20,453 

 
Reconciliations    

Reconciliations of the written down values at the beginning and end of the current financial year are set out 
below:  
 Office 

Furniture 
Right-of-use 

assets Total 
 $ $ $ 

Balance as at 1 July 2019 20,453               -    20,453 
Additions 2,302 71,235 73,537 
Depreciation expense (4,098) (66,570) (70,668) 
Balance as at 30 June 2020 18,657 4,665 23,322 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 
 

NOTE 7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 
Accounting Policy 
Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value as indicated, less, where 
applicable, accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. 
 
Depreciation 
The depreciable amount of all fixed assets is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the asset's useful life 
to the entity commencing from the time the asset is available for use.  
 
The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are: 
Class of fixed asset                                                 Depreciation rate 
 
Office equipment                                                              10% - 33% 
Furniture and fittings                                                         10% - 33% 
 
The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each 
reporting period. 
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These 
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. When revalued assets are 
sold, amounts included in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset are transferred to retained surplus.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
A right-of-use asset is recognised at the commencement date of a lease. The right-of-use asset is measured 
at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for, as applicable, any lease 
payments made at or before the commencement date net of any lease incentives received, any initial direct 
costs incurred, and, except where included in the cost of inventories, an estimate of costs expected to be 
incurred for dismantling and removing the underlying asset, and restoring the site or asset. 
  
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the unexpired period of the lease or the 
estimated useful life of the asset, whichever is the shorter. Where the entity expects to obtain ownership of 
the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the depreciation is over its estimated useful life. Right-of use 
assets are subject to impairment or adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. 
  
The entity has elected not to recognise a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability for short-term 
leases with terms of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. Lease payments on these assets are 
expensed to profit or loss as incurred. 

 
 2020  2019 

 $  $ 
NOTE 8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS    

Intellectual property and software*    

At cost -  413,931 
Less accumulated amortisation -  (273,613) 

 -  140,318 
    

*The Ministry Leadership Program  

The Ministry Leadership Program (MLP) is an initiative of Catholic Health Australia being a formation program 
for executive leaders of Catholic ministries.  The MLP is modelled on the leadership formation program 
developed by the US-based Ministry Leadership Centre (MLC). CHA has purchased from the MLC the 
formation pedagogy, program content, website and supporting documents (intellectual property), consultation 
services and formator services, support and training.  The agreement provides for support from 2017 – 2019, 
with a perpetual, royalty-free licence to use the intellectual property.  The MLP, for accounting purposes, is an 
intangible asset of Catholic Health Australia which will be amortised over the 3 year life of the agreement. 
Course revenues and course costs are recognised as the course modules are delivered 

 
The deed of assignment of the MLP to ACU was executed on 30 April 2020 with the date of assignment being 3 
March 2020 to acquire The Ministry Leadership Program.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 
 
NOTE 8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)    
Reconciliations    
Reconciliations of the written down values at the beginning and end of the current financial year are set out 
below:  
 Intangibles  Total 

 $  $ 
Balance as at 1 July 2019 140,318  140,318 
Amortisation expense (140,318)  (140,318) 
Balance as at 30 June 2020 -  - 

           
           2020  2019 
              $     $ 
NOTE 9. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES    

Trade payables 153,314  122,911 
Accrued expenses 62,923  62,011 
Funds held for programs 36,219  36,219 
Conference and programs -  56,160 
Leases 5,608  - 

 258,064  277,301 
    

Accounting Policy 
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the 
financial year and which are unpaid. Due to their short-term nature they are measured at amortised cost and 
are not discounted. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. 

 
NOTE 10. INCOME IN ADVANCE    

Subscriptions in advance -  298,106 
    

Accounting Policy 
The Company receives monies in advance for enrolments and sponsorship for the Ministry Leadership 
Program. It is the policy of the Company to treat this money as payments in advance until the course is 
delivered to the participant. The Company is contractually obliged to provide the service in a subsequent 
financial period if they do not provide the service in the current year. 

 
NOTE 11. EMPLOYEE PROVISIONS    

Annual leave 109,541  96,305 
Long service leave 74,849  63,054 

 184,390  159,359 
    

Accounting Policy 
Short-term employee benefits 
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and long service leave 
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at the amounts expected 
to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 
 
Other long-term employee benefits 
The liability for annual leave and long service leave not expected to be settled within 12 months of the 
reporting date are measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of 
services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. 
Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and 
periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on 
national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the 
estimated future cash outflows. 
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 2020  2019 
 $  $ 

NOTE 12. COMMITMENTS    
No later than 12 months -  82,875 
Later than 12 months -  736,597 

 -  819,472 
    

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, 
the tax authority 

 
NOTE 13. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURE    
Compensation 
The aggregate compensation made to directors and other members of key management personnel of the 
Company is set out below:  
Aggregate compensation 262,912  262,800 

 
NOTE 14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
Key management personnel 
Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in note 13. 
Transactions with related parties 
 
There were no transactions with related parties during the current and previous financial year. 
Receivable from and payable to related parties 
There were no trade receivables from or trade payables to related parties at the current and previous 
reporting date. 
Loans to/from related parties 
There were no loans to or from related parties at the current and previous reporting date. 

 
NOTE 15. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 
The impact of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic is ongoing and while it has been financially positive  for 
the entity up to 30 June 2020, it is not practicable to estimate the potential impact, positive or negative, after 
the reporting date. The situation is rapidly developing and is dependent on measures imposed by the 
Australian Government and other countries, such as maintaining social distancing requirements, quarantine, 
travel restrictions and any economic stimulus that may be provided.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
No matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2020 that has significantly affected, or may significantly 
affect the Company's operations, the results of those operations, or the Company's state of affairs in future 
financial years. 

 
NOTE 16. ENTITY DETAILS 
The registered office of the Company and the principal place of business is:  
Catholic Health Australia Limited 
Level 5, 60 Marcus Clarke Street 
Braddon ACT 2612 

 
NOTE 17. MEMBERS' GUARANTEE 

The Company is incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 and is a Company limited by guarantee. If 
the Company is wound up, the constitution states that each member is required to contribute a maximum of 
$10 each towards meeting any outstanding obligations of the entity. At 30 June 2020, the number of 
members was 55. 
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION 

 
In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Catholic Health Australia Limited, the directors declare that: 
 

1. The financial statements are in accordance with the Australian Charities and Not-for-profit Commission 
Act and 

a. comply with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements; and 
b. give a true and fair view of the financial position of the company as at 30 June 2020 and of its 

performance for the period ended on that date.  
2. In the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its 

debts as and when they become due and payable.  
 
This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.  
 
 
 

 
________________________________ 
Director 

 

Date: 

 
Date: 16 October 2020 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
 

TO THE MEMBERS OF  
 

CATHOLIC HEALTH AUSTRALIA LIMITED 
 
Opinion 

We have audited the financial report of Catholic Health Australia Limited (“the entity”), which comprises the 
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the directors declaration. In our opinion, the financial 
report of Catholic Health Australia Limited has been prepared in accordance with Division 60 of the Australian 
Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, including: 
 
(a) giving a true and fair view of the entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2020 and of its financial performance 

and cash flows for the year ended on that date; and 
 
(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Division 60 of 

the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the Catholic Health Australia Limited in 
accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 
110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in 
Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 
 
Other Information  
Those charged with governance are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in Catholic Health Australia Limited 's annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020, but 
does not include the financial report and the auditor's report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
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In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Report 
The management of the registered entity are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a 
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and 
the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 (ACNC Act) and for such internal control as the 
management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial report, management is responsible for assessing Catholic Health Australia Limited's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate Catholic Health Australia Limited 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  
 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and 
Assurance Standards Board website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf.  This 
description forms part of our auditor's report.  
 
 
 
 
 
       RSM Australia Partners 
 
 
 
 
 
Canberra, Australian Capital Territory   RODNEY MILLER  
Dated: 19 October 2020     Partner 
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Catholic Health Australia is grateful to our 
sponsors, Hesta and Bank First for their 
continued support.

OUR SPONSORS
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Contacts
Catholic Health Australia 
ABN 30 351 500 103 
PO Box 245  
Civic Square  
ACT 2608

T +61 2 6203 2777

www.cha.org.au 

 catholichealthaustralia

 @chaaustralia

Pat	Garcia  
Chief Executive Officer 
Patg@cha.org.au

Nick Mersiades 
Director of Aged Care 
Nickm@cha.org.au 

James Kemp 
Director Health Policy  
Jamesk@cha.org.au 

Julian Lee 
Director of Communications 
and Media  
Julianl@cha.org.au


